


Page 2



Page 3



Page 4



Page 5



Page 6



Page 7



 

 

 

 

 

Town of Surfside ~ Baynanza 2011 Cleanup Sites 

You and your family are invited to the biggest shoreline cleanup in Miami-Dade County! 
 

Join thousands of volunteers like you for the largest shoreline cleanup of its kind in South Florida. Last 
year, more than 7,500 participants had a great time collecting more than 40 tons of garbage from our shores and 

nearby islands of Biscayne Bay! 

Biscayne Bay Cleanup volunteers leave with the satisfaction of knowing they made a tremendous effort on 
behalf of the environment. There are 31 cleanup sites to choose from, so pack a lunch and bring your friends and 

family for a great day on the Bay! 

Help Make a Difference! 
 

Baynanza 2011 Cleanup will take place on 
Saturday, April 16th, 2011 
From 9:00 a.m. to noon. 

(It is recommended that participants arrive at their designated cleanup site at 8:45 a.m.)  
(Surfside Cleanup Site: On the beach @ 94th Street; behind the Best Western.) 

 
 

If you would like to participate in Baynanza 2011 Cleanup, Just go to www.miamidade.gov/derm  
to register on-line or pick up a brochure/registration form at the Surfside Town Hall.  

 

For more information contact: 
Town of Surfside 

Jacquelyn Villagran; Parks and Recreation Coordinator; Beach/Aquatics 
 (305)866-3635 ex 219 ~jvillagran@townofsurfsidefl.gov 

 
 

 register and sign up before April 2nd to receive a free Baynanza 2011 Commemorative T-shirt 
 Remember to wear closed toe shoes (such as tennis shoes.)   

 We suggest you bring:  sunscreen, hat, sunglasses, work gloves, and mosquito repellant.  

 

 

This annual event is hosted by the  

Miami-Dade County Department of Environmental Resources management (DERM).  

 Baynanza is fun, free, and very fulfilling!  

Page 8

http://www.miamidade.gov/derm
mailto:jvillagran@townofsurfsidefl.gov
http://www.miamidade.gov/derm/baynanza_t-shirt_design.asp


Page 9



 
Town of Surfside 

Town Commission Meeting 
January 18, 2011 

 7 p.m.  
MINUTES 

Town Hall Commission Chambers - 9293 Harding Ave, 2nd Floor 
Surfside, FL  33154 

 

 

1. Opening     

A. Call to Order – Mayor Daniel Dietch called the meeting to order at 7:00 pm. 
 

B. Roll Call of Members - Town Clerk Debra Eastman called the roll and the following 
members of the Commission were present upon roll call:  Commissioner Michael 
Karukin, Commissioner Edward Kopelman, Commissioner Marta Olchyk, Vice 
Mayor Joe Graubart and Mayor Daniel Dietch. 
 

C. Pledge of Allegiance – Police Chief David Allen led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

D. Mayor and Commission Remarks – Mayor Daniel Dietch 
Mayor Dietch thanked the residents for their engagement and participation in the 
community.  He also thanked the boards and committees.  He commented that the 
water and sewer project on the agenda is a bitter pill.  He added that there are hard 
decisions to be made and noted that good decisions need to be made for the benefit of 
the community.   
 
Vice Mayor Joe Graubart spoke about the Tucson, Arizona tragedy, followed by a 
moment of silence.  The Vice Mayor spoke about the importance of maintaining a 
civil attitude.  He further commented on the history and failures of the previous 
commission.  
 
The Vice Mayor presented the Community Notes.  He mentioned the North Shore car 
wash on January 22nd.   He also spoke about the Parks and Recreation Family Fun 
Day.  He mentioned the Winter Program, the Police Department Program Eye on 
Surfside and the Dr. Martin Luther King Day Day of Service organized by Richard 
Iacobacci.  He also thanked the police department. 
 
The Vice Mayor also gave an update on the Tourist Board.  He spoke about Jazz on 
the 3rd Thursday of the month.  He also mentioned the Kaplan, Iacobacci and 
Onichini families and their participation in the Holiday Light Contest. 

Page 10

deastman
Typewritten Text
3A



 
  

E. Agenda and Order of Business Additions, deletions and linkages 
Vice Mayor Graubart requested to move up the presentation to Dr. Priscilla 
Whitehead.  Town Manager Roger Carlton requested to add an item and link five 
items for water and sewer.  Commissioner Edward Kopelman asked to include a 
statement of support for the National Guard under Presentations.  Commissioner 
Marta Olchyk requested to discuss the following from the agenda:  Monthly Budget 
(p. 4), Maranon, auditor for the Tourist Board (p. 7), FEMA Archives (p.16) Credit 
Cards (p.17), Grant Advisor (p.18), Disaster Debris monitoring service control (p.40). 
 
Vice Mayor Graubart made a motion to amend the agenda as discussed.  
Commissioner Kopelman seconded the motion.  All were in favor and the motion 
carried unanimously. 
 

F. Special Presentation – Employee of the Quarter – Duncan Tavares, Tourist 
Bureau Director – Roger M. Carlton, Town Manager 
Town Manager Roger Carlton presented Tourist Bureau Director Duncan Tavares the 
“Employee of the Quarter” award. 
 

G. Special Presentation – Officer of the Month -  Chief David Allen 
     October, 2010 Officer Jay Matelis and November, 2010 Officer John Gentile 

Police Chief David Allen presented the Officer of the Month recognition to Officer Jay 
Matelis for the month of October 2010.  Chief Allen also presented the Officer of the 
Month recognition to Officer John Gentile for the month of November 2010. 

 
The Chief noted that Officer Matelis is being recognized for his work coordinating 
MAAD events.  He further noted that Officer Gentile is being recognized for his 
outstanding police work.  
 
Vice Mayor Graubart presented Dr. Priscilla Whitehead with an award of recognition.  
Dr. Whitehead is leaving the Church by the Sea. 
 
Tourist Bureau Director Duncan Tavares introduced Ms. Maureen Esposito who spoke 
about the Statement of Support for the National Guard.  She spoke about the town’s 
employees’ participation in the military. 
 
Commissioner Kopelman expressed support for the National Guard. 
 

2. Quasi-Judicial Hearings (None) 
 

3. Consent Agenda  
All items on the consent agenda are considered routine or status reports by the Town 
Commission and will be approved by one motion.  Any Commission member may request, 
during item 1E Agenda and Order of Business, that an item be removed from the Consent 
Agenda and discussed separately. 

 
            A.  Resolution Statement of Support for National Guard and Reserve of Florida – 
                  Commissioner Edward Kopelman 

Page 11



 
  

      A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF 
      SURFSIDE, FLORIDA EXPRESSING A STATEMENT OF SUPPORT FOR 
      THE NATIONAL GUARD AND RESERVE OF FLORIDA AND PROVIDING 
      FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.   
B.   Monthly Budget to Actual Summary as of October 31, 2010 - Martin Sherwood, 
       Finance Support Services Department Head   

          C.   Town Manager’s Report- “Points of Light”  
           D.   Town Attorney’s Report- Lynn M. Dannheisser, Town Attorney  

E.   Projects Progress Report – Calvin, Giordano & Associates, Inc.   
F.   Beautification Committee – Replacement of Sandra Argow with Grace Heising 
      – Commissioner Marta Olchyk  

           G.  Resolution Debris Monitoring Agreement – Assistant Police Chief, John DiCenso 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF 
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA APPROVING THE CONTRACT RENEWAL WITH 
O’BRIENS RESPONSE MANAGEMENT, INC. FOR TWO YEARS; 
AUTHORIZING THE TOWN MANAGER AND TOWN ATTORNEY TO 
IMPLEMENT THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE CONTRACT 
RENEWAL; AUTHORIZING THE TOWN MANAGER TO EXECUTE THE 
CONTRACT RENEWAL; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

           H.  Resolution FDLE Grant - Assistant Police Chief, John DiCenso   
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COMMISSION FOR THE TOWN OF 
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA AUTHORIZING THE TOWN MANAGER OF THE 
TOWN OF SURFSIDE TO APPLY FOR THE FEDERAL JUSTICE 
ASSISTANCE GRANT ADMINISTERED BY THE FLORIDA DEPARTMENT 
OF LAW ENFORCEMENT TO RECEIVE, EXPEND AND AMEND 
BYRNE/JAG FORMULA FUNDS AND EXECUTE AGREEMENTS WITH 
THE PURPOSE OF CREATING A MOBILE IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM; 
AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

I.  Mutual Aid Agreement with Aventura - Assistant Police Chief, John DiCenso 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COMMISSION FOR THE TOWN OF 
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA AUTHORIZING AND DIRECTING THE TOWN 
MANAGER AND TOWN CLERK TO EXECUTE A MUTUAL AID 
AGREEMENT WITH THE CITY OF AVENTURA, FLORIDA POLICE 
DEPARTMENT AND THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE POLICE DEPARTMENT. 

J.  Mutual Aid Agreement with North Miami – Assistant Police Chief, John DiCenso 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COMMISSION FOR THE TOWN OF 
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA, AUTHORIZING AND DIRECTING THE TOWN 
MANAGER AND TOWN CLERK TO EXECUTE A MUTUAL AID 
AGREEMENT WITH THE CITY OF NORTH MIAMI, FLORIDA POLICE 
DEPARTMENT AND THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE POLICE DEPARTMENT.         

           K.   Proclamation for 2011 Martin Luther King, Jr. Day of Service Surfside – 
       Mayor Daniel Dietch   

            L.   Resolution Declaring “Reverend Dr. Priscilla Felisky Whitehead Day” – Vice 
       Mayor Joe Graubart    
       A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF 
       SURFSIDE, FLORIDA DELCARING JANUARY 18, 2011 AS “REVEREND 
       DR. PRISCILLA FELSIKY WHITEHEAD DAY” IN THE TOWN OF 

Page 12



 
  

       SURFSIDE. 
 

Commissioner Kopelman made a motion to adopt the items on the Consent Agenda.  
Commissioner Karukin seconded the motion which carried 4 to 1 with 
Commissioner Olchyk dissenting. 

 
Chief Allen spoke about the red light safety program.  He noted that the program is 
currently in the “warning” period.  Mayor Dietch noted possible concerns, but 
opined that it allows the town to better use police resources.  Commissioner 
Kopelman commended the Chief on the “no turn on red” signs. 

Commissioner Olchyk spoke about the monthly budget versus actual.  

The Commission then discussed the auditor item on page 13.  Manager Carlton 
mentioned that the item was included in the budget that was approved and explained 
the audit process.  Commissioner Olchyk spoke commented that she does not want 
to add any new positions and noted that she opposes hiring anyone for that position.  
Town Manager Roger Carlton mentioned that this is not a city position, but rather an 
independent auditor with a fee up to $6,000 to perform the audit.   

The Commission also discussed the e-mail archives and spam filter project on page 
16. 

The Commission also discussed credit card use and online item on page 17.   

The Commission then discussed the renewal of disaster debris monitoring contract 
on page 40.  The commissioners inquired if the town has to pay for the service even 
when it is not being utilized.  Manager Carlton explained that it is only payable if the 
service is used. 

4.  Ordinances  

A. Second Readings (Ordinances and Public Hearing)   

1.  Commercial Vehicle Ordinance – Lynn Dannheisser, Town Attorney 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN 
OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA AMENDING CHAPTER 74 AND 
SPECIFICALLY SECTION 74-1 “COMMERCIAL VEHICLES” 
CREATING SECTION 74-2 “USE OF COMMERCIAL VEHICLES”   
AND SECTION 74-3 “ISSUANCE OF COMMERCIAL VEHICLE 
PARKING PERMIT” OF THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE CODE OF 
ORDINANCES PROVIDING FOR INCLUSION IN THE CODE; 
REPEALING ALL ORDINANCES OR PARTS OF ORDINANCES IN 
CONFLICT HEREWITH;   AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. 

[This Ordinance regulates the parking of commercial vehicles on residential 
streets, allowing one commercial vehicle to be parked in a residential driveway 

Page 13



 
  

provided the resident has obtained a commercial vehicle parking permit from 
the Town and delineating issuance and revocation procedures.] 
 
Town Clerk Debra Eastman read the ordinance by title into the record. 
 
Commissioner Kopelman made a motion to adopt the ordinance on second reading.  
Vice Mayor Graubart seconded the motion. 
 
Vice Mayor Graubart opined that this is a great opportunity for the Chief, Town 
Manager and resident volunteers to discuss a decal system rather than tags.  
Commissioner Kopelman interjected that the licensed vehicles are easier to identify 
by placard or decal.  Chief Allen opined that the current system is fine.  Manager 
Carlton mentioned that if it is the will of the commission to have staff discuss this 
item then they will do so and report back to the commission next month. 
 
Town Attorney Lynn Dannheisser mentioned that an ordinance relating to 
commercial vehicles on the street currently exists on the books.   
 
Mr. Alan Gourme stated that some houses have different commercial vehicles.  He 
noted that there are residents who work at different places.  He suggested two 
hanging tags per family.   
Mayor Dietch opened the public hearing. 
 
Mr. Richard Iacobacci inquired if there could only be one commercial vehicle per 
household.  He further inquired about how the vehicles would be classified if there is 
only one per household parked in the driveway and no commercial vehicle parked on 
the street.  Attorney Dannheisser read information on the size, capacity and sign. 
 
Seeing no other residents wishing to speak, Mayor Dietch closed the public hearing. 
 
Following the discussion, the motion to adopt the ordinance passed unanimously on 
roll call. 
 
2.  Amend Town Code to add Psychic Reading and Consultation As a Permitted 
Use – Lynn Dannheisser, Town Attorney     
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF 
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA AMENDING CHAPTER 90 AND SPECIFICALLY 
SECTION 90-41 “REGULATED USES” OF THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE 
CODE OF ORDINANCES TO ADD “PSYCHIC READING AND 
CONSULTATION” AS PERMITTED USE; PROVIDING FOR INCLUSION 
IN THE CODE; REPEALING ALL ORDINANCES OR PARTS OF 
ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT HEREWITH;   AND PROVIDING FOR AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 
          
[Per the Settlement Agreement approved at the last Commission meeting, we 
amend the code to allow psychic reading and consultation as a permitted use in 

Page 14



 
  

SD-B40 (Downtown Business) District as a second floor use and subject to all 
other regulations.] 
 
Town Clerk Debra Eastman read the ordinance by title into the record. 
 
Town Attorney Lynn Dannheisser gave an overview of the Ordinance. 
 
Commissioner Olchyk made a motion to adopt the ordinance.  Vice Mayor Graubart 
seconded the motion. 
 
Vice Mayor Graubart expressed concern about possible litigation that might arise.  
Commissioner Kopelman spoke against the ordinance.   
 
Mayor Dietch opened the public hearing. 
 
Ms. May Sneit spoke against the ordinance and asked the commission to not approve 
this in this town. 
 
Town Attorney Lynn Dannheisser reminded everyone that litigation was previously 
discussed and that the town received a Notice of Dismissal based upon including 
psychic as a permitted use added to the code.   
 
Upon roll call, the motion to adopt the ordinance passed 4 to 1 with Commissioner 
Kopelman dissenting. 

 
   B.  First Readings Ordinances 
 
         1.  Outside Employment Ordinance – Lynn Dannheisser, Town Attorney 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF 
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA AMENDING CHAPTER 2 “ADMINISTRATION” 
AND SPECIFICALLY CRATING SECTION 2-152 “OUTSIDE 
EMPLOYMENT BY TOWN EMPLOYEES” OF THE TOWN OF 
SURFSIDE CODE OF ORDINANCES PROVIDING FOR INCLUSION IN 
THE CODE; REPEALING ALL ORDINANCES OR PARTS OF 
ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT HEREWITH; AND PROVIDING FOR AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 
[This Ordinance prohibits outside employment unless approved by the Town 
Manager. It is based on the Code of Miami-Dade County.] 
 
Town Clerk Debra Eastman read the ordinance by title into the record. 
 
Town Attorney Lynn Dannheisser noted that this ordinance tracks the Miami 
Dade County ordinance. 
 
Commissioner Kopelman made a motion to approve the ordinance.  
Commissioner Karukin seconded the motion. 
 

Page 15



 
  

Commissioner Kopelman inquired about how this affects the Police Department.  
 
Mayor Dietch added that this ordinance should apply equally to both full-time and 
part-time employees.  Commissioner Kopelman suggested amending the 
ordinance to expand it to part-time employees. 
 
Town Attorney Lynn Dannheisser offered the following amendment: 
Section 2-152 – Outside employment by the Town employees, adding section 2 as 
follows:   
 
“No part-time employee shall accept outside employment during such hours and 
times that are committed to employment by the Town of Surfside, nor shall 
equipment or material belonging to the Town of Surfside be used by any part-time 
employee for employment outside the Town of Surfside.” 
 
Commissioner Karukin seconded the amended motion.  The motion carried 
unanimously. 

 
                     2.  Curb Cuts – Sarah Sinatra Gould, Town Planner    

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF 
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA AMENDING SECTION 90.61 CURB CUTS OF 
THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE CODE OF ORDINANCES; PROVIDING FOR 
INCLUSION IN THE CODE; REPEALING ALL ORDINANCES OR 
PARTS OF ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT HEREWITH; PROVIDING 
FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
[This Ordinance places curb cut regulations currently in the building code 
into the zoning code and allows for additional curb cuts on single family lots.] 
 
Town Clerk Debra Eastman read the ordinance by title into the record. 
 
Shelly Eichner, CGA, presented the item and noted that it allows additional curb 
cuts for lots greater than 100 feet in width.  She added that it also moves the 
building code language to the zoning code so that it all can be in one place. 

 
Commissioner Kopelman made a motion to adopt the ordinance.  Commissioner 
Karukin seconded the motion. 
 
The motion to adopt the ordinance passed unanimously.  Commissioner 
Kopelman was absent at the time of vote. 
 

        *3.  Boat Storage - Sarah Sinatra Gould, Town Planner   
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF 
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA AMENDING SECTION 90.65 BOAT STORAGE, 
INCLUDING ZONING CODE DEFINITIONS OF “SETBACKS” AND 
“YARDS” OF THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE CODE OF ORDINANCES; 
PROVIDING FOR INCLUSION IN THE CODE; REPEALING ALL 

Page 16



 
  

ORDINANCES OR PARTS OF ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT 
HEREWITH; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
[This Ordinance revises boat regulations for parking, annual boat 
registration, maintenance, and use no less than 12 times a year as evidenced 
by an owner affidavit.] 
 
Town Clerk Debra Eastman read the ordinance by title into the record. 
 
Town Manager Roger Carlton explained the proposed ordinance.  He noted that it 
allows the boat owner to put the boat in side or rear yard, only if it is in a wide 
area.  He added that if parked in the front yard, the boat must be on a paved 
surface.  If the boat is parked on the side or rear, a wall or hedge will be required 
to hide the boat from the neighbors.  Town Manager Roger Carlton noted that 
boats and boat trailers shall be removed immediately upon the issuance of a 
hurricane watch.   
 
Commissioner Kopelman made a motion to approve the ordinance.  Vice Mayor 
Graubart seconded the motion. 
 
Resident Howard Rennert spoke in opposition.   
 
Commissioner Karukin expressed opposition to the new requirements.  He added 
that there are currently enough rules and these new rules are invasive and 
intrusive. 
 
Vice Mayor Graubart asked staff to provide information on what the surrounding 
towns of Bay Harbor Islands, Bal Harbour, Miami Shores, Miami Beach do. He 
proposed to grandfather in all existing boat owners in a way of protecting the 
town’s residents. 
 
Mayor Dietch noted that if the ordinance is approved on first reading, it will move 
on Planning and Zoning. 
 
Resident Luis Ramirez spoke in opposition.   
 
Resident Richard Iacobacci agreed with Vice Mayor Graubart and opposes the 
fee.   

 
The motion carried 3 to 2 with Commissioner Karukin and Commissioner Olchyk 
voting in opposition. 
 
Mayor Dietch stated that this ordinance will go to P&Z and then come back to the 
commission.  Vice Mayor Graubart noted that the proposal shall also include 
grandfathering. 

 
       5.  Resolutions and Proclamations 

Page 17



 
  

      A.  Code Compliance Authority for Police Officers – Police Chief David Allen 
 

Town Manager Roger Carlton spoke about the two options available to the town in 
terms of code enforcement.  He mentioned that the town can make code enforcement 
more extensive but we have one code enforcement official.  He added that under 
Florida law the police are allowed to enforce code with training.  Town Manager 
Roger Carlton explained option A and option B.    

 
        Alternate A    

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF 
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA AUTHORIZING THE TOWN MANAGER TO 
APPOINT CODE ENFORCEMENT OFFICERS FOR THE TOWN WHO 
MAY INCLUDE LAW ENFORCEMENT OFFICERS TO ADDRESS CODE 
VIOLATIONS FOR SECTIONS 90-79; SECTION 90-79 ABANDONED OR 
INOPERABLE VEHICLES; SECTION 90-79 PARKING ON GRASS OR 
UNPAVED OR UNAPPROVED SURFACES; SECTION 74-1 COMMERCIAL 
VEHICLE PROHIBITED IN THE RESIDENTIAL AREA; SECTION 54-63  
SIDEWALK OR STREET OBSTRUCTION;  SECTION 10-28 LEASH LAW; 
SECTION 10-32 FECAL DISPOSAL; SECTION 10-33 DOGS ON THE 
BEACH; SECTION 10-36 BARKING OR VICIOUS DOGS; SECTION 54-78 
PROHIBITED NOISES; SECTION 34-28 ILLEGAL DEPOSIT OF DEBRIS; 
SECTION 54-2 HANDBILL DISTRIBUTION; PROVIDING FOR AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
Town Clerk Debra Eastman read the resolution by title into the record. 

 
      Alternate B    
      A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF 
      SURFSIDE, FLORIDA AUTHORIZING THE TOWN MANAGER TO 
      APPOINT CODE ENFORCEMENT OFFICERS FOR THE TOWN WHO 
      MAY INCLUDE LAW ENFORCEMENT OFFICERS TO ADDRESS CODE 
      VIOLATIONS FOR SECTIONS 90-79; SECTION 90-79 ABANDONED OR 
      INOPERABLE VEHICLES; SECTION 90-79 PARKING ON GRASS OR 
      UNPAVED OR UNAPPROVED SURFACES; SECTION 74-1 COMMERCIAL 
      VEHICLE PROHIBITED IN THE RESIDENTIAL AREA; SECTION 54-63 
      SIDEWALK OR STREET OBSTRUCTION;  SECTION 10-28 LEASH LAW; 
      SECTION 10-32 FECAL DISPOSAL; SECTION 10-33 DOGS ON THE 
      BEACH; SECTION 10-36 BARKING OR VICIOUS DOGS; SECTION 54-78 
      PROHIBITED NOISES; SECTION 34-28 ILLEGAL DEPOSIT OF DEBRIS; 
      SECTION 54-2 HANDBILL DISTRIBUTION; SECTION 14-29 WORK 
      WITHOUT PERMIT; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
Town Clerk Debra Eastman read the resolution by title into the record. 

 
Commissioner Kopelman made a motion to approve option B, which  included 
Saturday and Sunday hours of enforcement.  Vice Mayor Graubart seconded the 

Page 18



 
  

motion.  Upon roll call, the motion carried 4 to 1 with Commissioner Karukin voting 
in opposition. 

 
 

B.  Resolution for Construction Administration and Inspection and Engineering   
–  Roger M. Carlton, Town Manager    

      A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF 
       SURFSIDE, FLORIDA APPROVING WORK AUTHORIZATION NUMBER 
       42 WITH CALVIN, GIORDANO AND ASSOCIATES, INC. AUTHORIZING 
       CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION, CONSTRUCTION INSPECTION 
       AND ENGINEERING DURING CONSTRUCTION OF THE WATER, 
       SEWER, STORM DRAINAGE PROJECT AND PROVIDING FOR AN 
       EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
Town Clerk Debra Eastman read the resolution by title into the record. 

 
Town Manager Roger Carlton explained five amendments to the Calvin Giordano and 
Associates agreement, which will finish the project to completion.  He stated that the 
project is so far along that the startup costs, learning curves and reissuance of plans to 
another firm would be very expensive.  He noted that it is a big project and that it is 
not in the final decision-making point.  He added that this stage still allows design to 
finish, bids to come in and the contract still needs to be awarded.  Town Manager 
Roger Carlton stated that the project still has a long way to go for financing. 

 
Mr. Chris Giordano, of CGA, introduced John Cooper, Shaun Bamforth, Christina 
Baliera and Chris Bernard.  Mr. Giordano did a PowerPoint presentation on the 
proposed process of replacing the sewer lines, water lines and drainage system.   
 
Commissioner Olchyk inquired about the permitting process and the projected time 
frame.   
 
Commissioner Karukin inquired if it is possible that the project can come in under the 
estimated cost.  Town Manager Roger Carlton stated that he thinks that the project 
will come in under $16 million.   
 
Commissioner Kopelman made a motion to approve all five resolutions (Items 5B, 
5C, 5D, 5E and 5F).  Commissioner Karukin seconded the motion.  The motion 
carried 4 to 1 with Vice Mayor Graubart dissenting. 

 
C.  Resolution for Public Relations Utility Replacement Project – Roger M.  

       Carlton, Town Manager 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF 
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA APPROVING WORK AUTHORIZATION NUMBER 
43 WITH CALVIN, GIORDANO AND ASSOCIATES, INC. FOR PUBLIC 
RELATIONS AND SOCIAL NETWORKING MANAGEMENT FOR THE 
UTILITY REPLACEMENT PROJECT AND PROVIDING FOR AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

Page 19



 
  

 
Town Clerk Debra Eastman read the resolution by title into the record. 

 
Commissioner Kopelman made a motion to approve all five resolutions (Items 5B, 
5C, 5D, 5E and 5F).  Commissioner Karukin seconded the motion.  The motion 
carried 4 to 1 with Vice Mayor Graubart dissenting. 

 
        
       D.  Resolution for Topographic Survey – Roger M. Carlton, Town Manager 
       A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF  

SURFSIDE, FLORIDA APPROVING WORK AUTHORIZATION NUMBER 
45 WITH CALVIN, GIORDANO AND ASSOCIATES, INC. AUTHORIZING A 
TOPOGRAPHIC SURVEY ON ROADS AND PROVIDING FOR AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
Town Clerk Debra Eastman read the resolution by title into the record. 
 
Commissioner Kopelman made a motion to approve all five resolutions (Items 5B, 
5C, 5D, 5E and 5F).  Commissioner Karukin seconded the motion.  The motion 
carried 4 to 1 with Vice Mayor Graubart dissenting. 
 
 

       E.  Resolution for Dry Sewer Lines – Roger M. Carlton, Town Manager 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF 
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA APPROVING WORK AUTHORIZATION NUMBER 
41 WITH CALVIN, GIORDANO AND ASSOCIATES, INC. AUTHORIZING 
THE PREPARATION OF CONSTRUCTION PLANS FOR SURFSIDE 
INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENTS FOR DRY SEWER LINE AND 
AUTHORIZING THE TOWN MANAGER TO TAKE ANY NECESSARY 
ACTION AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
Town Clerk Debra Eastman read the resolution by title into the record. 
 
Commissioner Kopelman made a motion to approve all five resolutions (Items 5B, 
5C, 5D, 5E and 5F).  Commissioner Karukin seconded the motion.  The motion 
carried 4 to 1 with Vice Mayor Graubart dissenting. 
 
 

        F.   Resolution for Pavement Restoration Plan - Roger M. Carlton, Town      
        Manager 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF 
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA APPROVING WORK AUTHORIZATION NUMBER 
46 WITH CALVIN, GIORDANO AND ASSOCIATES, INC. FOR THE 
PAVEMENT RESTORATION PLAN AND PROVIDING FOR AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 
  
Town Clerk Debra Eastman read the resolution by title into the record. 

Page 20



 
  

 
Commissioner Kopelman made a motion to approve all five resolutions (Items 5B, 
5C, 5D, 5E and 5F).  Commissioner Karukin seconded the motion.  The motion 
carried 4 to 1 with Vice Mayor Graubart dissenting. 
 
 

      G.  Resolution – Reappropriation of Legal Department Funds– Lynn 
                  Dannheisser, Town Attorney     

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF 
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA, AUTHORIZING THE REAPPROPRIATION OF 
FUND BALANCE (RESERVES) TO THE LEGAL DEPARTMENT BUDGET; 
AMENDING THE TOWN’S BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2010-2011; AND 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

Town Clerk Debra Eastman read the resolution by title into the record. 
 
Town Attorney Lynn Dannheisser explained that the resolution appropriates funds 
into the legal budget and that the town needs to appropriate $35,000 to the legal 
budget for Young Israel. 

Commissioner Kopelman made a motion to approve.  Commissioner Karukin 
seconded the motion.   

Mayor Dietch explained that the funds come from roll over from last year’s funds 
saved from the legal budget. 

Upon roll call, the resolution carried unanimously. 

 

      H.   Resolution Retainer of Houlihan & Partners, P.A. – Lynn        
       Dannheisser, Town Attorney   

A   RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COMMISSION FOR THE TOWN 
OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA, APPROVING AN AGREEMENT WITH 
HOULIHAN & PARTNERS, P.A. TO APPEAR AS CO-COUNSEL 
AND REPRESENT THE TOWN IN THE CASE CAPTIONED YOUNG 
ISRAEL OF BAL HARBOUR, INC. V. TOWN OF SURFSIDE CASE 
NO: 10-CV-24392 IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR 
THE SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA; PROVIDING FOR AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
Town Clerk Debra Eastman read the resolution by title into the record. 
 
Town Attorney Lynn Dannheisser stated that she recommends Houlihan & 
Partners  be retained because they are experienced federal litigators. 
 
Commissioner Kopelman made a motion to approve the resolution.  
Commissioner Karukin seconded the motion. 

Page 21



 
  

  
Commissioner Olchyk expressed opposition to retaining Houlihan & Partners.  
She stated that she is in favor of going at full strength and utilizing everything 
within power to prove that Surfside is right in this matter.  She added that the 
town has a town attorney on staff and another firm we are retaining and 
should not hire an additional firm.  She added that she does not want for her 
vote to reflect that she was in favor of hiring another firm when the town 
might have been able to do it without him.   
 
The Mayor also noted that Houlihan will participate in the initial strategy and 
in litigation only. 
 
Commissioner Kopelman asked the Town Attorney to address the comments 
made by Commissioner Olchyk.  Town Attorney Lynn Dannheisser stated 
that Commissioner Olchyk was referring to that she (Dannheisser) has a 
personal relationship with Mr. Houlihan.  She dates Mr. Houlihan.  Town 
Attorney Lynn Dannheisser stated that her job is to recommend and give the 
best advice and counsel.  She added that this issue is a huge exposure to the  
Town and that the plaintiff is asking for $5 million in damages.  She added 
that prevailing in litigation is very important to the Town and that there is no 
benefit to her personally.  Attorney Dannheisser mentioned that she spoke to 
the Commission on Ethics to ensure that there is no conflict.  There is no 
conflict and she has given the best advice and counsel.  She added that due to 
her personal relationship, the fees have been reduced from $500 to $250 per 
hour. 
 
Upon roll call, the motion to approve the resolution carried 4 to 1 with 
Commissioner Olchyk voting in opposition. 

 
      I.  Resolution Police Confiscation Fund – Police Chief, David Allen 

                  A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF 
                  SURFSIDE, FLORIDA, PROVIDING FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 
                  2010/2011 POLICE CONFISCATION FUND EXPENDITURE IN THE 

      AMOUNT OF FORTY-FIVE THOUSAND ($45,000.00) TO BE 
      FUNDED BY PROCEEDS OF CONFISCATED FUNDS.  
 

Town Clerk Debra Eastman read the resolution by title into the record. 
 
Town Manager Roger Carlton that the resolution appropriates the money in the 
Confiscation fund.  Police Chief David Allen added that the auditor recommended 
that the federal statute be added because forfeiture money is from state and federal. 
 
Vice Mayor Graubart made a motion to approve the resolution.  
Commissioner Karukin seconded the motion, which carried unanimously. 

 
       J.  Resolution Approving Contract with Lynx Construction, LLC – Roger 
       M. Carlton, Town Manager 

Page 22



 
  

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN 
OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA APPROVING THE DESIGN-BUILD 
CONTRACT WITH LYNX CONSTRUCTION LLC FOR THE 
DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION OF THE SURFACE PARKING LOT 
LOCATED AT 9450 COLLINS AVENUE IN ACCORDANCE WITH 
THE BID AWARD MADE BY RESOLUTION 10-1980; AND 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

Town Clerk Debra Eastman read the resolution by title into the record. 
 
Town Manager Roger Carlton recommended the award of design-build for 
parking lot to Lynx Construction. 
 
Commissioner Kopelman made a motion to approve the resolution.  
Commissioner Karukin seconded the motion. 
 
Upon roll call, the motion carried unanimously. 

 
      6.  Good and Welfare  

Public comments for subjects or items not on the agenda.  Public comment on agenda 
items will be allowed when agenda item is discussed by the Commission. 
 
Mr. Stan Bershad invited all to the car wash on Saturday benefitting the Kiwanis.  He 
added that the cost is $5 per car. 
 
Mr. Lou Cohen spoke about being in favor of the hotel proposed by Sylvia Coltrane and  
about the status.   
 
Mr. Richard Iacobacci spoke about Team Surfside and Martin Luther King Day Day of 
Service and thanked Duncan Tavares, the Police Department and the Mayor’s wife for 
the PTA participation.  He added that he would like to see a monthly event. 
 

7. Town Manager and Town Attorney Reports 
Town Manager and Town Attorney Reports have been moved to the Consent Agenda –  
 Item 3.   
 All items on the Consent Agenda are considered routine or status reports by the Town 
 Commission and will be approved by one motion.  Any Commission member may 
 request, during item 1E Agenda and Order of Business, that an item be removed from  
the consent agenda and discussed separately. 
 

8. Unfinished Business and New Business – None 
 
 

      9.  Mayor, Commission and Staff Communications  
  
            A.  Proposed FY 2011-2012 Budget Calendar - Roger M. Carlton, Town 

      Manager    

Page 23



 
  

  
Town Manager Roger Carlton stated that the involvement of the Commission and the 
Citizens comes in too late in the budget process.  He explained the budget calendar and 
asked the commission to accept the proposed schedule. 
 
Commissioner Kopelman made a motion to approve the proposed budget calendar.  
Commissioner Karukin seconded the motion, which carried unanimously. 
 

            B.   Maranon Property Report – Roger M. Carlton, Town Manager  
        Town Manager Roger Carlton briefly discussed the history of the Maranon property    
        and recommended selling it. 
 

Commissioner Kopelman moved to sell the property.  Commissioner Karukin 
seconded the motion. 

 
Vice Mayor Graubart stated that this matter has been dragged out enough and he 
does not want to add to the divisiveness.  He commented that it is a half million 
dollar loss.  He stated that he agrees with healing the community.  The Vice Mayor 
stated that he would like the Town to consider demolishing the house so they can get 
tax money.   
 
Upon roll call all were in favor and the motion to sell the property carried. 
 

             C.  Report on Feral Cats and Dog Feces – Roger M. Carlton, Town Manager  
       DEFERRED 
 

             D.  Discussion on Downtown Vision Process – Roger M. Carlton, Town Manager 
Town Manager Roger Carlton presented a new approach at looking at what the 
downtown should be.  He added that a consultant will not be used, but rather staff 
will be used.  He stated that if the Commission accepts the report, he will direct staff 
to start and he will come back to the Commission with recommendations on what 
should be done.  Town Manager Roger Carlton thanked Duncan Tavares for his 
assistance. 

 
Commissioner Kopelman stated that he is pleased with the Advisory Committee and 
inquired about when the results will be presented.  Town Manager Roger Carlton 
noted that the first meeting will be February 15th. 

 
Commissioner Olchyk inquired about the possibility that a paid consultant might be 
needed.  Town Manager Roger Carlton stated that in that case, the project would 
come back to the commission for funding. 
 
Commissioner Kopelman made a motion to proceed with the project as quickly as 
possible.  Commissioner Karukin seconded the motion, which carried unanimously. 

   
             E.  Discussion of Performance Based Salary Adjustments – Roger M. Carlton, Town 

       Manager    

Page 24



 
  

 
Town Manager Roger Carlton stated that Commissioner Olchyk made the request 
for this item.  He added that this accepts the theory that raises be performance based.  
He asked the Commission if this is the direction in which they want to proceed. 
 
Commissioner Karukin moved the item.  Commissioner Kopelman seconded the 
motion.  All were in favor and the motion to approve carried. 
 

  
            F.  Acceptance of Legislative Program for 2011- Roger M. Carlton, Town Manager 
 

Town Manager Roger Carlton noted that this item includes recommendations Town 
Lobbyist Fausto Gomez. 

 
Commissioner Kopelman made a motion to accept the item.  Commissioner Karukin 
seconded the motion. 

 
 The motion carried 4 to 1 with Vice Mayor Graubart voting in opposition. 
 
            G.  Crossing Barrier at 96th Street and Harding - Roger M. Carlton, Town Manager 

      and Assistant Police Chief John DiCenso    
 

Town Manager Roger Carlton explained the barrier and that he met with the District 
Engineer who is supportive of doing additional study. 

 
Town Manager Roger Carlton noted he would like authorization to join with Bal 
Harbour to work with DOT to install a crosswalk at that location and regarding 
repaving Collins Avenue, adding stamped concrete to the crosswalks and also adding 
crossings for community center. 
 
Commissioner Kopelman made a motion to approve the Manager’s recommendation.  
Vice Mayor Graubart seconded the motion, which carried unanimously. 

 
         H.  Discussion Regarding Adjustment of Solid Waste Collection Service - Roger M. 
       Carlton, Town Manager and Assistant Police Chief John DiCenso   
 

Town Manager Roger Carlton stated that this item relates to a request from 
Commissioner Olchyk and  that he is seeking how the commission would like to go 
forward to make these decisions part of the budget process. 
 
Commissioner Karukin opined that it was a good idea and suggested redirecting it to 
the staff.   
 
Vice Mayor Graubart commented that the single family homes have a serious raccoon 
problem and mentioned that he hopes that part of the study will be that the Town will 
issue trash cans that can be wheeled to the street.  He added that bags can no longer 
be used.   

Page 25



 
  

 
Mayor Dietch inquired about the current services and that the Town needs to post the 
recycling schedule there along with the current level of service and landscape waste 
collection.  Town Manager Roger Carlton stated that upgrading the website 
information will be the priority for the new Public Works Director. 
 
Mr. Jack Shiferal from Choice Environmental spoke that they pick up for other 
municipalities.  Mayor Dietch encouraged him to speak with the Town Manager. 
 
Commissioner Olchyk inquired about the trash containers for the beach.  Town 
Manager Roger Carlton mentioned that they will be available in 30 days. 
 

             I.  GreenPrint –Our Design for a Sustainable Future – Mayor Daniel Dietch 
 
Town Manager Roger Carlton stated that Mayor Dietch asked for this item to be 
placed on the agenda and suggested that staff look at what is appropriate for Surfside 
to become a more green community.  He asked for input from the Commission and 
stated that he will bring back a report for them. 

 
Town Manager Roger Carlton introduced Mr. Bill Evans as the new Public Works 
Director. 

 
    J.  Discussion Regarding Proposed Five Year Financial Plan – Roger M. Carlton, 
                 Town Manager  DEFERRED 
  
      10. Adjournment  
 
 Mayor Dietch adjourned the meeting at 10:30 pm. 
 
 
 

Accepted this ____day of _____, 2011 
 
 
 
       ________________________ 
       Daniel Dietch, Mayor 
 
 
Attest: 
 
 
 
_______________________ 
Debra E. Eastman, MMC 

Page 26



                           

Town of Surfside 
Town Commission Meeting 

February 8, 2011 
 7 p.m.  

Town Hall Commission Chambers - 9293 Harding Ave, 2nd Floor 
Surfside, FL  33154 

DRAFT 

 

            

1. Opening     

A. Call to Order – Mayor Dietch called the meeting to order at 7:00 pm. 
 

B. Roll Call of Members Town Clerk Debra Eastman called the roll and the following 
members of the Commission were present upon roll call:  Commissioner Michael 
Karukin, Commissioner Edward Kopelman, Commissioner Marta Olchyk, Vice 
Mayor Joe Graubart and Mayor Daniel Dietch. 
 

C. Pledge of Allegiance – Town Clerk Debra Eastman led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

D. Mayor and Commission Remarks – Mayor Daniel Dietch 
 
Mayor Dietch spoke about the need for better communication with the residents in the 
community.  He mentioned that the commission is waiting for recommendations from 
the Communication Committee on ways to enhance the communication.  The Mayor 
encouraged residents to attend the committee meetings and noted that they are open 
to the public.  The Mayor also spoke about all the various communications links that 
are available to the residents allowing them to become more involved in the 
community.   
 
Commissioner Kopelman addressed Vice Mayor Graubart’s comments from the last 
meeting.       
 
Commissioner Karukin spoke about the Communications Committee and noted that 
some changes have already been put in place such as changes to the Gazette in terms 
of calendar format and also added that the advertisements section was moved.  
Commissioner Karukin also thanked the lifeguard staff for the event on the beach 
Sunday in which they took care of a woman who was in distress.   
 
Commissioner Olchyk mentioned that the commission needs to forget what happened 
in the past administration and move on.  She stated that this current commission 
cannot change what happened in the past, but they can have an effect on what 
happens in the future, to a certain degree.   
 

Page 27



 
  

Vice Mayor Graubart addressed the comments made by Commissioner Kopelman 
about the garage.  He stated that the combined wisdom of the community is greater 
than the any one, two three of them.   
 
Vice Mayor Graubart gave an update on Tourist Board events.   
 

E. Agenda and Order of Business Additions, deletions and linkages 
 
Vice Mayor Graubart requested to link Items 9(A), 9(F) and 9(I). 
 
Commissioner Olchyk made a motion to approve linking items 9(A), 9(F) and 9(I).  
Commissioner Karukin seconded the motion.  The motion carried unanimously. 
 
Commissioner Karukin asked to pull items 2 and 21 from points of light. 
 
Commissioner Olchyk asked to pull pages 38, 42 and 44. 
 
Commissioner Karukin made a motion to accept the items that were pulled from the 
consent agenda.  Vice Mayor Graubart seconded the motion, which carried 
unanimously. 
      

F. Community Notes – Mayor Daniel Dietch 
The Mayor spoke about the following upcoming events in the community: 
North Shore Kiwanis Charity Dog Show on 02/20, 
Senior trip to the museum of art 02/17, 
Parks and Recreation 5K run on 02/27, 
Senior trip to Hard Rock 03/02, 
And the Legacy Buy a Brick program, in honor of the new Community Center.  The 
Mayor noted that each brick is $250 
 
Dana Kulvin spoke about the Tiles for Technology program.   
 

G. Special Presentation – Ruth K. Broad Bay Harbor K-8 Center 100th Birthday 
Celebration – Roger M. Carlton, Town Manager 
 
Town Manager Roger Carlton introduced Mr. Maurice Broad, son of Shepard Broad, 
for whom the Broad Causeway is named.  Mr. Maurice Broad then introduced his 
sister, Ms. Ann Bussel, resident of Bay Harbor, and Principal Rodriguez, principal of 
Ruth Broad Bay Harbor K-8.   
 
Mayor Daniel Dietch presented Mr. Broad and his sister, Ms. Bussel, with a plaque 
honoring their mother’s 100th birthday.  The Mayor spoke about the school’s 
importance in the community and about Mrs. Broad’s commitment to education. 
 
 

H. Special Presentation - Police Civilian of the Year – Elinor Joseph  and Police 
Officer of the Year – Sgt. Rory Alberto, Police Chief David Allen 

Page 28



 
  

The Chief also presented the Police Officer of the Year award to Sgt. Rory Alberto.  
Chief Allen spoke about Sgt. Alberto’s outstanding police work. 

 
I. Call for Executive Session – Lynn Dannheisser, Town Attorney 

 
Town Attorney Lynn Dannheisser mentioned that she is seeking direction from the 
commission on a litigation strategy for the case Young Israel of Bal Harbor vs the 
Town of Surfside.  She proposed Tuesday, February 15th at 5:30 pm as a date and 
time for the executive session.  
  

           J.   Water, Sewer, Drainage Project Plan of Finance Presentation – Roger M. 
       Carlton, Town Manager  
 

Town Manager Roger Carlton explained the eligibility of State Revolving Fund 
Loans and the possibility of getting legislature to waive part of the loan if the project 
is financed.  He noted that he is requesting for the commission to accept the short list 
and authorize to go out to bid. 

 
Chris Giordano of Calvin, Giordano and Associates gave a presentation recapping the 
steps taken in the planning stages of the project.  He also gave a synopsis of the 
current status of the sewage system and all the problems involved.  Mr. Giordano 
further discussed the cost of the project. 
 
Town financial advisors Sergio Masvidal from Public Financial Management gave a 
presentation on his firm. Sergio Masvidal spoke about the two sources of funding 
available to the town.     
 
Jolinda Herring, with the law firm of Bryant, Miller, Olive PA gave a presentation on 
her firm.  Ms. Herring gave a background on the firm and mentioned that they do 
public finance.   
 
Ms. Herring mentioned that per the town’s charter, the commission will also need to 
enact an ordinance for the authorization of debt.  She also stated that the commission 
will also need a resolution incorporating rates from the bank that bids.  
 
Vice Mayor Graubart inquired about the fees of associated with both firms.  Ms. 
Herring noted that her firm quoted the town a straight fee of $25,000.  Ms. Herring 
mentioned that her firm will be responsible for all the closing documents and 
transaction management required by the bank. 
  
Commissioner Olchyk inquired why these firms are needed.   
 
Commissioner Kopelman inquired about what the ballpark figure is on interest rates 
at this point.   
 

Page 29



 
  

Town Manager Roger Carlton explained the importance of making a decision as soon 
as possible due to the availability of the state revolving fund loans and the potential 
increase in the price of oil that would affect the cost of the project.   
 
Commissioner Olchyk inquired if the town owes the firms any money for the work 
they have done even if the town decides to not go forward with the project.  Mr. 
Masvidal responded that no, they are typically paid out of closing costs. 
 
Commissioner Karukin inquired about what would happen if bids come in under $16 
million.  Mr. Masvidal mentioned that he is sure there will be no difference in the rate 
and added that the funds requested will still be up to $16 million. 
 
Vice Mayor Graubart asked about which financing option is best for the residents.  
Mr. Masvidal responded that the best value would be if the town could fund the 
project entirely out of SRF, but he added that he has never seen that.  Vice Mayor 
Graubart inquired about the role of these two firms if the town decided to fund the 
project with and SRF loan.  Ms. Herring noted that her firm has worked with SRF 
loans in the past and they would still be involved in the process.  Based on Vice 
Mayor Graubart’s inquiry about the municipal bond market, a discussion ensued 
about the recent volatility in that market.  Mr. Masvidal noted that a water and sewer 
project brings with it a stronger credit in the market.   
 
Mayor Dietch noted that the town has a very qualified citizens advisory committee 
that have been sitting in on meetings and have met with the financial advising team.  
The Mayor commented that the committee has been very impressed with the caliber 
of financing advisors in these two firms.   
  
Vice Mayor Graubart inquired if the citizens’ committee has a recommendation on 
the financing of the project.  Manager Carlton noted that the committee saw the bond 
counsel presentation and were very supportive of it.  He added that the committee 
will be present at future meetings through the process. 

 
Mayor Daniel Dietch opened the public hearing. 
 
Mr. Pablo Casal of Collins Avenue spoke before the commission.  Mr. Casal thanked 
everyone for their presentations, for the Gazette newsletter and for the opportunity to 
speak.  Mr. Casal also asked about the $3.6 million in grant money.  Mr. Carlton 
explained about the possibility of a grant and about maintaining eligibility for grants.  
Mr. Casal also asked if this project can be completed in stages.  Mr. Carlton explained 
that the plan is to divide the single family neighborhood in 3 sections and complete 
each section in about four months.  He stated that the last step will be the final coat of 
asphalt.  He added the impact on each neighborhood will be kept to a minimum. 
 
Commissioner Karukin noted that the town is looking into specific graphics to 
determine how each homeowner will be impacted so that the residents understand the 
moving of meters.  He added that a whole communication packet will be prepared 
over time. 

Page 30



 
  

 
Mr. Sasha Plutno of Harding Avenue spoke before the commission.  He spoke about 
the town hiring a firm to do loans and commented that that is the reason why the town 
hired a town manager and a finance director.   
 
Seeing no further residents wishing to speak, the Mayor closed the public hearing. 

 
2. Quasi-Judicial Hearings (None) 

 
3. Consent Agenda  

All items on the consent agenda are considered routine or status reports by the Town 
Commission and will be approved by one motion.  Any Commission member may request, 
during item 1E Agenda and Order of Business, that an item be removed from the Consent 
Agenda and discussed separately. 

 
Commissioner Karukin made a motion to approve the consent agenda minus the items 
that were pulled.  Vice Mayor Graubart seconded the motion, which carried unanimously. 
 

            A.  Minutes – December 14, 2010 Regular Commission Meeting    
 

Commissioner Olchyk asked to make a correction on the December minutes.  Town 
Clerk Debra Eastman mentioned that she has made a correction to the minutes as follows: 
the first sentence in Item 9(D) will be stricken and replaced with - Commissioner Olchyk 
suggested that in order to assign staff to do beach clean-up on one day per week, that 
perhaps Wednesday garbage could be eliminated.   

   
             B.  Resolution Unsafe Structures – Paul Gioia, Building Official   
                 A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF 
                 SURFSIDE, FLORIDA DECLINING THE ESTABLISHMENT OF 
                 ADMINISTRATIVE PROCESSES TO ADDRESS UNSAFE STRUCTURES 
                 WITHIN MUNICIPAL BOUNDARIES AND TO CONTINUE TO PROCESS 
                 UNSAFE STRUCTURES THROUGH THE MIAMI-DADE COUNTY UNSAFE 
                 STRUCTURES BOARD AND PROCESSES PURSUANT TO SECTION 8-5 OF 
                 THE MIAMI-DADE COUNTY CODE; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE 
                 DATE.   
 
            C.  Parks and Recreation Committee Appointment – Barbara McLaughlin –  
                  Commissioner Edward Kopelman 
 
            D.  Budget to Actual Summary as of November 30, 2010 – Martin Sherwood, Finance 
                  Director   
 
            E.  Town Manager’s Report (Points of Light) – Roger M. Carlton, Town Manager 
 
            F.   Town Attorney’s Report – Lynn M. Dannheisser, Town Attorney 
                     
            G.   Projects Progress Report – Calvin, Giordano and Associates, Inc. 

Page 31



 
  

  
(Item 2 on Points of Light) Commissioner Karukin inquired if Manager Carlton has 
been in touch with UM Historian Dr. Baken for the visioning process.  Mr. Carlton 
mentioned that he has not, but he will be.   
 
(Item 21 on Points of Light) Commissioner Karukin noted that he is withdrawing the 
item since there is no further need for research.  He asked that this item be closed out 
and eliminated from Points of Light. 
 
Commissioner Olchyk had questions about the budget to actual.  Mayor Dietch noted 
that this was part of the Consent Agenda and has already been adopted, but he added 
that there will be discussion on it.   
 
Mr. Martin Sherwood, Town Finance Director spoke about the general fund and the 
expenditures.   

 
Commissioner Olchyk spoke about Item 4 on page 37 of the Points of Light regarding 
vacant lots.  She inquired why the town has made the decision to purchase this land 
and noted that she was not aware of the town’s offer.  Manager Carlton noted that this 
item has been on the agenda before and that the commission has had discussion on it.   
 
Commissioner Olchyk spoke about the maintenance of the collection parking meters.  
Town Manager Roger Carlton explained that he is disappointed in LAZ’ 
implementation of the meters.  He added that it is his intent to send them a default 
letter, a cure period will be given and if they do not make corrections, the town will 
take over the process.   
 
Commissioner Olchyk inquired about the interior and exterior painting of town hall.  
She also asked about the $5,600 that was spent to clean up an additional space in 
town hall.  She expressed concern about going over budget.  Mr. Carlton noted that 
the cost of painting the inside and outside of town hall are within the budgeted 
amounts.  He added that they found that the trusses that hold the roof in the additional 
space Commissioner Olchyk mentioned were rusting badly.  He noted that it is 
important to have a safe working environment.  Public Works Director Bill Evans 
noted that the garage area Commissioner Olchyk is referring to has been repaired and 
reiterated that it was in a state of disrepair.   
 
Commissioner Olchyk asked the Manager to explain the Public related solicitations.  
Mr. Carlton mentioned that the town has an ordinance in which priority is given to the 
businesses in town when services are solicited.   
 
Commissioner Kopelman made a motion to adopt the Points of Light discussed. Vice 
Mayor Graubart seconded the motion.  The motion carried unanimously 
(Commissioner Karukin was not present for the vote). 
 
 

  

Page 32



 
  

4.  Ordinances  

A. Second Readings (Ordinances and Public Hearing)   

 1.  Outside Employment Ordinance – Lynn Dannheisser, Town Attorney 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF 
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA AMENDING CHAPTER 2 “ADMINISTRATION” 
AND SPECIFICALLY CRATING SECTION 2-152 “OUTSIDE 
EMPLOYMENT BY TOWN EMPLOYEES” OF THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE 
CODE OF ORDINANCES PROVIDING FOR INCLUSION IN THE CODE; 
REPEALING ALL ORDINANCES OR PARTS OF ORDINANCES IN 
CONFLICT HEREWITH; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
[This Ordinance prohibits outside employment unless approved by the Town Manager. 
It is based on the Code of Miami-Dade County.] 
 
Town Clerk Debra Eastman read the Ordinance by title into the record. 
 
Attorney Lynn Dannheisser explained that this ordinance prohibits the town employees from 
accepting outside employment where the Town’s time, equipment or materials will be used.  
She noted that the provision for part-time employees was included per the commission’s 
request.   
 
Commissioner Kopelman made a motion to adopt the ordinance.  Commissioner Karukin 
seconded the motion.   
 
Mayor Dietch opened the public hearing.  Seeing no residents wishing to speak on the item, 
the Mayor closed the public hearing. 
 
The motion carried unanimously on roll call. 
 

                   2.  Curb Cuts – Sarah Sinatra Gould, Town Planner    
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF 
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA AMENDING SECTION 90.61 CURB CUTS OF THE 
TOWN OF SURFSIDE CODE OF ORDINANCES; PROVIDING FOR 
INCLUSION IN THE CODE; REPEALING ALL ORDINANCES OR PARTS 
OF ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT HEREWITH; PROVIDING FOR AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 
[This Ordinance places curb cut regulations currently in the building code into 
the zoning code and allows for additional curb cuts on large single family lots.] 
 
Town Clerk Debra Eastman read the Ordinance by title into the record. 
 
Town Planner Sarah Sinatra, with Calvin, Giordano spoke.  She noted that there is no 
change for properties whose width is less than 100 feet.  She stated that if the width is 
greater, the proposal is to increase the width of curb cut for driveways.   
 
Commissioner Kopelman made a motion to approve the ordinance.  Commissioner 
Karukin seconded the motion.   
 

Page 33



 
  

Mayor Dietch opened the public hearing.  Seeing no residents wishing to speak on the item, 
the Mayor closed the public hearing. 
 
The motion carried unanimously on roll call. 
 

   B.  First Readings Ordinance 
 

1.  Boat Storage - Sarah Sinatra Gould, Town Planner   
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF 
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA AMENDING SECTION 90.65 BOAT STORAGE, 
INCLUDING ZONING CODE DEFINITIONS OF “SETBACKS” AND 
“YARDS” OF THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE CODE OF ORDINANCES; 
PROVIDING FOR INCLUSION IN THE CODE; REPEALING ALL 
ORDINANCES OR PARTS OF ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT HEREWITH; 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
[This Ordinance permits boats to be parked in the front, side and rear yards of a 
lot, but not in the side or rear setbacks and requires screening of boats in the 
side or rear yard from neighboring properties.] 
  
Town Clerk Debra Eastman read the Ordinance by title into the record. 
 
Town Planner Sarah Sinatra gave a history of the item.  She noted that changes and 
modifications have been made since the first reading of the ordinance on January 18th to 
include the public’s desired changes. 
 
Commissioner Kopelman moved to adopt the ordinance.  Vice Mayor Graubart seconded the 
motion.   
 
Vice Mayor Graubart read how the town code regarding boats read for many years.  He noted 
that the code was never enforced.  He gave the information to the Town Clerk for anyone 
who would like to see it.   
 
Ms. Sinatra, Town Planner, noted that as long as the setback is respected and the boat does 
not project into the right-of-way, they boat can be parked in the front.   
 
Resident Sasha Plutno suggested that the ordinance be amended to allow parking of the boat 
in side or rear setback of the property.  He also commented that screening the boats is an 
additional expense to the owner. 
 
Resident Ken Arnold inquired about how the code addresses boats that are sitting in disrepair 
in front of a property.  Mayor Dietch read the provision in the ordinance that requires the 
parked boats to be in a presentable condition. 
 
The motion carried unanimously on roll call.     

 
       5.  Resolutions and Proclamations 

          A.  Resolution Approving Copier Lease – Debra Eastman, Town Clerk  
       A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF 
       SURFSIDE, FLORIDA, WAIVING THE BID PROCESS AND APPROVING A 

Page 34



 
  

       PURCHASE ORDER FOR A 36 MONTH TERM WITH DELTA BUSINESS 
       SOLUTIONS, PIGGYBACKING ON THE STATE OF FLORIDA 
       CONTRACT NO.  600-000-11-1, AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF  
       PURCHASE ORDERS; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
  
 Town Clerk Debra Eastman read the resolution by title. 
  

Commissioner Karukin made a motion to approve the resolution.  Commissioner  
Kopelman  seconded the motion. 

  
 Resident Sasha Plutno spoke against piggybacking on someone else’s contract. 
 
 The motion carried unanimously. 
 
        B.  Resolution Approving List of Pre Qualified Contractors and Authorization              
        to Continue the Bid Process – Roger M. Carlton, Town Manager   

         A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA APPROVING 
         THE LIST OF PRE QUALIFIED CONTRACTORS FOR THE 

INFRASTRUCTURE REHABILITATION PROJECT; AND AUTHORIZE 
THE TOWN MANAGER TO SEEK COMPETITIVE BIDS; AND 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.   
 
Town Clerk Debra Eastman read the correct title of the resolution into the record. 
 
Chris Giordano distributed an updated list of top contractors to the commission.  He 
noted the changes made to the list. 
 
Commissioner Kopelman made a motion to accept the list of prequalified contractors 
as amended.  Commissioner Karukin seconded the motion.  Motion carried 4-1 with 
Vice Mayor Graubart opposed. 

 
         C.  Infrastructure Rehabilitation Project Public Meeting – Chris Giordano,                    
         Calvin, Giordano & Associates, Inc.   
         A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA APPROVING 
         THE WATER, SEWER AND STORMWATER FACILITIES PLAN AFTER A 
         PUBLIC MEETING ON SAME.   
   
 Town Clerk Debra Eastman read the Resolution by title. 
 

Commissioner Karukin made a motion to approve the facilities plan.  Commissioner 
Kopelman seconded the motion, which carried unanimously. 

 
      6.  Good and Welfare  

Public comments for subjects or items not on the agenda.  Public comment on agenda 
items will be allowed when agenda item is discussed by the Commission. 
 

Page 35



 
  

Mr. Jerry Kahn, President of the Regent Palace on Collins Avenue, spoke before the 
commission.   Mr. Kahn complained about the red light camera that is facing his home.  
He mentioned that the camera flashes like a strobe light into his home.  Mr. Kahn read 
portions of the contract with American Traffic Solutions and noted that he was never 
contacted by this company for the placement of the system equipment.  Mr. Kahn stated 
that he wants to meet with the vendor’s project manager and added that he wants the 
lights turned off at night until they fix the problem. 
 
Police Chief David Allen stated he has received complaints on the light Mr. Kahn is 
referring to.  He noted that he contacted the company, which came out and installed 
strobe shields to alleviate the problem, but the lower apartments are still being affected.  
The Chief explained that the company will be coming back to adjust the camera angle.  
Mayor Dietch asked Chief Allen to keep Mr. Kahn updated on the status of the situation.   
 
Mr. Sasha Plutno thanked the Chief and the commission for solving the crossing problem 
on Harding Avenue with the poles on the street.  Mr. Plutno also spoke in favor of the 
CVS expansion and opined that it is in the town’s best interest.  Mr. Plutno spoke about 
the Young Israel case and gave a brief background.   
 
Mr. Stan Bershad, of Bay Drive invited everyone to the North Shore Kiwanis 3rd annual 
Dog Show that will take place on February 20th at 10:00 am behind the Best Western.   
 
The Mayor closed Good and Welfare.   
 

7. Town Manager and Town Attorney Reports 
Town Manager and Town Attorney Reports have been moved to the Consent Agenda –  
 Item 3.   
 All items on the Consent Agenda are considered routine or status reports by the Town 
 Commission and will be approved by one motion.  Any Commission member may 
 request, during item 1E Agenda and Order of Business, that an item be removed from  
the consent agenda and discussed separately. 
 
Town Attorney Lynn Dannheisser spoke about the issue of solar collectors, which was 
brought up at the Planning and Zoning Board meeting.  She noted that there are no 
regulations in the town’s code books relating to it.  She further noted that Florida statute 
prohibits municipalities from prohibiting residents from installing energy devices.  Ms. 
Dannheisser stated that her research on the matter indicates that regulations can be 
enacted to ensure that the solar collectors conform to the town codes without prohibiting 
the device.   
 
Commissioner Kopelman spoke about the appearance of solar collectors on the roofs of 
homes.  Mayor Dietch noted that the commission’s decision on the matter must be based 
on what is best for the community.  He directed Attorney Dannheisser to present possible 
resolutions on the matter to the Planning and Zoning Board.   
 
 
 

Page 36



 
  

8. Unfinished Business and New Business – None 
 

      9.  Mayor, Commission and Staff Communications 
           A.  Bottle Bill Resolution – Vice Mayor Joe Graubart   
  

Vice Mayor Graubart spoke about the bottle bill deposit system.  He suggested that the 
town pass a bottle bill resolution.  He noted that states with deposit laws have higher 
residential recycling rates and less litter.  Commissioner Kopelman noted that bottle bill 
deposits are adopted on the state level.   

 
 Mayor Dietch suggested sending it to the appropriate state agency.   
 

Commissioner Olchyk expressed concern that this system will take up more valuable 
time away from the town’s employees.  She opined that it is too big for the town to 
tackle.  Commissioner Karukin agreed with Commissioner Olchyk.   
 
Mayor Dietch asked Attorney Dannheisser about how long it would take her to draft a 
bottle bill resolution.  Ms. Dannheisser noted that it can be quickly prepared.   

 
  B.  Five Year Financial Forecast for the Town of Surfside - Roger M. Carlton,  
                    Town Manager   
   

Town Manager Roger Carlton explained that the Five Year Forecast looks at what 
will happen to the taxation levels in the town for 5 years based upon different 
strategies causing the remaining major parcels to be developed.  He noted that 
currently 80% of the town’s property taxes come from residential homes, which is a 
high percentage based on comparable communities.  He noted that if the town does 
not do good development on the sites, that percentage could rise to 90%.  Mr. 
Carlton mentioned that one issue is equity and the other is that the town does not 
know what the millage will go to.  He spoke about the 5 different scenarios.  He 
noted that there are scenarios in which the millage can be held down significantly.   
 
Commissioner Kopelman mentioned that he has read through the manager’s report 
and suggests a workshop to review it due to its complexity.  The Mayor agreed that a 
workshop is necessary.  He noted that this is an opportunity to analyze the 
undeveloped parcels in town and decide what can be developed to be harmonious 
with the rest of town.   
 
 
The Mayor thanked Town Manager Roger Carlton and the town’s staff for 
coordinating this report that looks beyond one year into the future for planning 
purposes. 
 
Town Manager Carlton mentioned that EWM prepared the report pro bono and he 
thanked Martin Sherwood, Finance Director, and Budget Consultant Carl Berkey-
Abbott for their work.  The Manager also noted that this type of report can easily 
cost $75,000 to $100,000.  .   

Page 37



 
  

 
Town Manager Carlton mentioned that it is his intent is to make available a decision 
tree, for the commission following the workshop, that will help the commission give 
direction to staff on what to do.  The Mayor asked that, wherever possible, there be a 
benefit-cost analysis.   
 

 C.  Land Acquisition of Two Parcels Immediately South of Town Hall - Assistant  
        Police Chief John DiCenso   
 

Town Manager Carlton spoke about Atkins property and the Delgado property that 
runs from Collins Ave to Harding Avenue.  He gave a history of the Delgado 
Property.   
 
Mr. Carlton mentioned that this is a wonderful opportunity for the town to purchase 
a property directly to the south of it.  He noted that this year’s budget contains 
$1.025 million for land acquisition.  He asked the commission for authority to begin 
the process of purchasing this property.  He noted that any purchase price would 
come back to the commission for approval.  Mr. Sherwood mentioned that the 
appraised value of the Delgado property is about $1.25 million.   
 
Mr. Carlton spoke about the Atkins property.  He mentioned that the town made an 
offer and the deal fell through.  He noted that the current status of the deal is 
$320,000 with 3-year financing included.  He added that the town would pay 25% up 
front and in each of the 3 years pay 25% more.  He added that the interest is included 
in the $320,000.  He noted that the Atkins family will accept this deal.   
 
Commissioner Kopelman made a motion to accept the Atkins deal right away.  
Commissioner Karukin seconded the motion.   
 
Mr. Carlton spoke about the possibility of using the other property as a parking 
garage for the community center.  He added that the town could enter into an 
agreement with the owners of the Delgado property or the other property located on 
9256 Collins Ave. for an exchange in land for the town to have parking rights.   
 
Commissioner Olchyk asked what the town will be doing with the lots.  Mr. Carlton 
mentioned that soon the library trailers will be gone and added that a larger complex 
with incorporated parking for the community center and town hall making it an 
extraordinary complex.  He noted that this parcels of land are a very limited 
commodity in Surfside and opined that it will never be cheaper than it is right now.   
 
Vice Mayor Graubart asked about zoning issues with the Delgado property.  Mr. 
Carlton stated that he will get clarification.   
 
Commissioner Olchyk spoke about the experience with the Maranon property and 
inquired if perhaps it is more beneficial to the town for someone else to purchase 
these properties and the town collect the tax revenues.  Mr. Carlton noted that there 
is a trade off in the revenues and mentioned that he will have a memo with the 

Page 38



 
  

information for the commission.  He added that the town would be getting an 
extraordinary complex as trade off for tax revenues.   
 
Mayor Dietch mentioned that the town has to be careful in how it will proceed with 
the land acquisitions because it will limit the available funds.   
 
On roll call, the motion passed 4 to 1 with Commissioner Olchyk voting against it 
and noting, for the record, that she is voting no because she does not feel that the 
town should get into real estate business when the community is in dire need for 
additional taxation.  She added that she is not against additional space for parking, 
but is against spending the money, right now, to buy all these lots, when these lots 
may be purchased by a private individual that could give revenue to the town. 
 

 D.  Acquisition of Single Family Home at 9333 Harding Avenue Property – Roger 
        M. Carlton, Town Manager  
 

Manager Carlton explained the location of the home and that the asking price is 
$298,000.  He noted that he has spoken with the real estate agent, but currently has 
no recommendation to the commission.  Commissioner Olchyk expressed opposition 
for the same reason she noted in the previous item.     
 
Vice Mayor Graubart opined that the property’s best use might be to the town and 
spoke in favor of purchasing it.  Commissioner Kopelman agreed.  Commissioner 
Olchyk also expressed concern that the property could become an expense to the 
town if it falls into disrepair if the town does not find a use for it.  Commissioner 
Olchyk also noted that the town should not spend the money in the budget to just get 
rid of it.   
 
Town Manager Carlton noted that the house on the property north of town all is in 
perfect condition and the town could rent it to make more money than it would get in 
taxes.  He added that the Atkins property does not have house on it.   

 
  E.  Surfside Beach Maintenance – Tim Milian, Parks and Recreation  
                    Director and Bill Evans, Director of Public Works   
 

Mr. Tim Milian from Parks and Recreation spoke about the increased maintenance 
program.  He noted that it will stay within budget and meet FDEP guidelines. 

 
   F.   Household Dry Cell Battery Recycling at Town Hall – Bill Evans, Director  
                     of Public Works   
 

Public Works Director Bill Evans directed the Commission to the picture of the dry 
cell container he provided.  He noted that it is a good measure and that it complies 
with the commission’s direction of becoming more environmentally friendly.  He 
proposed having a single station, underneath the steps at city hall.  Mr. Evans noted 
that each container costs $107 and if 5 are purchased, the shipping back to them is 
free.  He suggests that 5 be purchased.   

Page 39



Minutes 
 Regular Commission Meeting 

February 8, 2011 
 
  

14 
  

 

 
 Mayor Dietch recommended updating the website with this information. 
 

Commissioner Kopelman made a motion to purchase the five Dry Cell Battery 
Recycling containers.  Vice Mayor Graubart seconded the motion.  The motion 
carried unanimously.   

 
  G.  Budget High Level Direction – Roger M. Carlton, Town Manager  
                     
   H.  (i) Report from Esslinger-Wooten- Maxwell (EWM) Realty Report on Sales in 

        The Town of Surfside 
         (ii) Report from Esslinger-Wooten- Maxwell (EWM) Realty Report on Short  
                    Sales in Surfside  
         (iii) Report from Esslinger-Wooten- Maxwell (EWM) Report on Foreclosures 
                    In Surfside – Roger M. Carlton, Town Manager  
 
    I.  Sustainable Initiatives – Bill Evans, Director of Public Works  Page 146-149 

 
Mr. Shaun Bamforth, Lead AP with Calvin Giordano spoke before the commission 
regarding his report and snapshots on sustainable options for the town.   
  
Commissioner Kopelman made a motion to accept the report from Calvin Giordano.  
Vice Mayor Graubart seconded the motion.  The motion passed 4 to 1 with 
Commissioner Karukin dissenting.  
 
Commissioner Kopelman recognized Barbara McLaughlin for her work on code 
enforcement and noted that he is appointing her to Parks and Recreation. 

            
      10. Adjournment  
 

The meeting adjourned at 10:15 p.m. 
 
Accepted this ____day of _____, 2011 

 
 
       ________________________ 
       Daniel Dietch, Mayor 
Attest: 
 
_______________________ 
Debra E. Eastman, MMC 
Town Clerk 

Page 40



Page 41

deastman
Typewritten Text
3B



Page 42



Page 43

deastman
Typewritten Text
Item 3C



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66

deastman
Typewritten Text
Item 3D



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72

deastman
Typewritten Text
Item 3E



Page 73



Page 74



Page 75



Page 76

deastman
Typewritten Text
3F



Page 77



Page 78



Page 79

deastman
Typewritten Text
Item 3G



Page 80

deastman
Typewritten Text
Item 3H



Page 81

deastman
Typewritten Text
3I



Page 82



Page 83



Page 84



Page 85



Page 86



Page 87

deastman
Typewritten Text
Item 3J



Page 88



Page 89

deastman
Typewritten Text
4A1



Page 90



Page 91



Page 92



Page 93



Page 94



Page 95



Page 96



Page 97



Page 98



Page 99



Page 100



Page 101



Page 102



Page 103



Page 104



Page 105



Page 106



Page 107



Page 108



Page 109



Page 110



Page 111



Page 112



Page 113



Page 114

deastman
Typewritten Text
4A2



Page 115



Page 116



Page 117



Page 118



Page 119



Page 120



Page 121



Page 122



Page 123



Page 124



Page 125



Page 126



Page 127



Page 128



Page 129



Page 130



Page 131



Page 132



Page 133



Page 134



Page 135



Page 136



Page 137



Page 138



Page 139



Page 140



Page 141



Page 142



Page 143



Page 144



Page 145



Page 146



Page 147



Page 148



Page 149



Page 150



Page 151



Page 152



Page 153



Page 154



Page 155



Page 156



Page 157



Page 158



Page 159



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Watter and

REV

Tow

d Sewe

VISED M
 
 
 
 

wn of S

 
er Rate

March 2

43460 Ridg

Temecu
T: 9
F: 3

www.tisc

Surfside
Florida

e Study

28, 2011

ge Park Driv
Suite 200W

ula, CA 9259
951.719.847
301.320.486
chlerbise.com

e 
a 

 
 

 
 

y 
 

1 

 
ve 
W 
90 
78 
60 
m 

 
 

Page 160



 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

March 28, 2011 
 
Mr. Roger M. Carlton 
Town Manager 
Town of Surfside 
9293 Harding Avenue 
Surfside, Florida 33154 
 
Dear Mr. Carlton, 

Attached  is  the  revised  final  report TischlerBise prepared  for  the  long‐term  financial plan and 
rate study conducted for the Town of Surfside’s Water and Sewer Enterprise Fund. This revised 
report and  its contents  reflect updated costs data  related  to water and sewer operations and 
proposed debt service allocated for water and sewer capital needs. The rates contained within 
this report reflect increases adopted by the Town Commission for Fiscal Year 10/11 and at levels 
for FY 11/12 through FY 14/15 as suggested in our prior analysis. The suggested rate increases as 
originally reported will produce revenues that will cover the proposed bond  issue,  its resulting 
annual debt  service and will  far exceed  the  required debt  coverage  ratio of 110 percent. The 
rate increases also are based on the assumption that there will be no changes in the enterprise 
fund’s  reserve  structure  and  Town  policy  regarding  the  fund  reserves.  The  suggested  rate 
increases and the approximately $2 million in grant monies position the Town to meet operating 
and capital expenses while maintaining healthy reserve levels in the future.  

This  report was  undertaken  as  the  Town  is  facing  several  challenges  to  continuing  its  high‐
quality utility operations. The  focus of  this  study  is  to ensure  that  the utilities have  sufficient 
revenues to meet their operational, capital and proposed debt service obligations and that rates 
are set proportionate to the costs of providing utility service to each customer class. Our report 
outlines the approach, methodology, findings, and conclusions of this study. 

This  report  has  been  prepared  using  generally  accepted  rate  setting  techniques.  The  Town’s 
utility  accounting,  budgeting,  and  billing  records  were  the  primary  sources  for  the  data 
contained within  the  report.  Furthermore, we  have worked  closely with  Town  staff  and  the 
Town Commission over the course of this project. The conclusions contained within this report 
provide  the  Town  with  a  set  of  recommendations  to  provide  stable  defensible  funding  for 
continued high‐quality operations. We are  confident  that  the  results developed based on  the 
cost of service analysis will result in fair and equitable rates to the Town’s users.   

   

Page 161



Sincerrely, 

 

Brian Jewett 
Vice‐PPresident 

erBise, Inc.Tischl

Page 162



Table of Contents 
Table of Contents ......................................................................................................................... iv 

List of Figures & Tables ............................................................................................................... v 

Executive Summary ...................................................................................................................... 1 
Overview of the Rate Study Process ......................................................................................................... 1 

Financial Plan Summary ............................................................................................................................ 2 

Organization of the Report ....................................................................................................................... 6 

Project Background ...................................................................................................................... 7 
Key Financial Plan Objectives .................................................................................................................... 8 

Rate Setting Principles ............................................................................................................... 10 
Established Principles & Guidelines ........................................................................................................ 10 

Revenue Requirements ........................................................................................................................... 11 

Financial Planning ................................................................................................................................... 11 

Rate Design ............................................................................................................................................. 11 

Rate Setting Principles Summary ............................................................................................................ 12 

Utility Enterprise Fund Budget Analysis .................................................................................. 13 
Project Assumptions ............................................................................................................................... 13 

Utility Revenues and Expenditures ......................................................................................................... 13 

Water Rate Analysis ................................................................................................................... 15 
Revenue Requirements Analysis ............................................................................................................. 15 

Cost of Service Analysis ........................................................................................................................... 17 

Rate Design Analysis ............................................................................................................................... 20 

Sewer Rate Analysis .................................................................................................................... 26 
Revenue Requirements Analysis ............................................................................................................. 26 

Cost of Service Analysis ........................................................................................................................... 28 

Rate Design Analysis ............................................................................................................................... 30 

 

Page 163



List of Figures & Tables 
Table of Contents ......................................................................................................................... iv 

List of Figures & Tables ............................................................................................................... v 

Executive Summary ...................................................................................................................... 1 
Figure 1: Comprehensive Rate Study Interrelated Analysis ...................................................................... 2 

Figure 2: Water System Financial Projection Using FY 10/11 Adopted Water Rates ............................... 3 

Figure 3: Sewer System Financial Projection Using FY 10/11 Adopted Sewer Rates ............................... 3 

Figure 4: Water System Financial Projection Using Water Rate Increases from Prior Rate Analysis ....... 4 

Figure 5: Sewer System Financial Projection Using Sewer Rate Increases from Prior Rate Analysis ....... 5 

Table 1: Water Monthly Base Service Charge (Adopted FY 10/11 & Suggested FY 11/12 – FY 14/15) .... 5 

Table 2: Water Consumption Charge (Adopted FY 10/11 & Suggested FY 11/12 – FY 14/15) ................. 6 

Table 3: Wastewater Rate Structure (Adopted FY 10/11 & Suggested FY 11/12 – FY 14/15) .................. 6 

Project Background ...................................................................................................................... 7 

Rate Setting Principles ............................................................................................................... 10 
Figure 6: Overview of the “Cash Basis” Design ....................................................................................... 11 

Utility Enterprise Fund Budget Analysis .................................................................................. 13 
Table 4: Escalation and Input Assumptions ............................................................................................ 14 

Water Rate Analysis ................................................................................................................... 15 
Table 5: Water CIP and Funding Sources ................................................................................................ 15 

Table 6: Water Revenue Adjustments .................................................................................................... 16 

Figure 7: Major Budget Components of Water System .......................................................................... 17 

Table 7: Water Fund Balance Information .............................................................................................. 18 

Table 8: Classification of Water Expenses by Function ........................................................................... 19 

Table 9: Allocation of Revenue Requirements by Functional Percentages ............................................ 19 

Figure 8: Consumption Charge Approaches ........................................................................................... 21 

Table 10: Fixed Monthly Base Charges by Meter Size (Adopted and Suggested per Prior Analysis) ..... 22 

Table 11: Meter Equivalency Ratios ........................................................................................................ 22 

Table 12: Customer Consumption Charge Structure .............................................................................. 23 

Page 164



Town of Surfside, Florida    vi 

Figure 9: Customer Billing Analysis: Adopted FY 10/11 Rates ................................................................ 24 

Figure 10: Customer Monthly Consumption Charge Analysis ................................................................ 24 

Figure 11: SFR Rate Comparison –12,000 gallons ................................................................................... 25 

Sewer Rate Analysis .................................................................................................................... 26 
Table 13: Sewer CIP and Funding Sources .............................................................................................. 26 

Table 14: Sewer Revenue Adjustments .................................................................................................. 27 

Figure 12: Major Budget Components of Sewer System ........................................................................ 28 

Table 15: Sewer Fund Balance Information ............................................................................................ 29 

Table 16: Classification of Water Expenses by Function ......................................................................... 30 

Table 17: Allocation of Revenue Requirements by Functional Percentages .......................................... 30 

Table 18: Fixed Monthly Base Charges by Account or Dwelling Unit and Sewer Flow Rate .................. 32 

Figure 13: Customer Billing Analysis: FY 10/11 Adopted Sewer Rates ................................................... 33 

Figure 14: SFR Rate Comparison –12,000 gallons; Adopted FY 10/11 Rates .......................................... 33 

 

Page 165



Executive Summary 
The Town of Surfside retained TischlerBise to prepare a  long‐term financial plan and rate study for the 
water and sewer utilities to ensure each utility has sufficient revenues to meet operational, capital and 
projected debt service obligations. An additional but equally important objective of the analysis was to 
ensure that rates are set proportionate to the costs of providing utility service to each customer class. As 
part of  this  rate  study, TischlerBise  facilitated dialogue with  the Town Commission and Town  staff at 
several Commission meetings and project meetings. During  these meetings,  the Commission and staff 
made  recommendations  to be  incorporated  into  the study where appropriate. This  report documents 
the findings, analyses and recommendations of the comprehensive rate study effort. 

The Town desires  rates and  fees  that  fully  fund operations, maintenance, and  future capital costs  for 
infrastructure  repair  and  replacement.  The  Town  is  facing  several  challenges  to  continuing  its  high‐
quality operations: 

 Utility revenues were not keeping pace with increasing operational and capital costs prior to the 
adjustment made for FY 10/11. 

 Purchased water  costs  and  sewage disposal  expenses have  a  volatile history  and  could  spike 
again in the future. 

 Utility  infrastructure  is aging and must be  replaced  soon  to maintain high‐quality  service and 
minimize system water losses and sewer inflow/infiltration problems. 

Therefore, the purpose of this analysis is to provide recommendations on changes to the current utility 
rate structures to meet these challenges and others identified during the course of the project. 

Overview of the Rate Study Process 
The  financial planning and rate study efforts were conducted  in coordination with Town staff and  the 
Town  Commission.  During  the  course  of  the  project,  the  consulting  team  facilitated  several 
presentations  and discussions with  the Commission members  and Town  staff  to  review,  explore  and 
analyze  rate  setting  principles  and  utility  financial,  operational  and  capital  issues.  The  meetings 
consisted of presentations of  information and data related to the Town’s utility revenue needs, capital 
improvement  plans,  current  rate  structures,  other  relevant  rate  and  financial  issues.  This  process 
enabled  the  Town  staff,  Commission members  and  the  consulting  team  to  develop  a multi‐faceted 
understanding of  financing planning  issues, and  to develop a broad consensus on a number of policy 
items and rate recommendations. 

The scope of the study resulted in the development of cost‐based water and sewer user charges through 
a comprehensive cost of service and rate design study process. Utility rates must be set at a level where 
a utility’s operating and capital expenses are met with the revenues received from customers. This is a 
significant  point,  as  failure  to  achieve  this  level  may  lead  to  insufficient  funds  being  available  to 
appropriately maintain the system and meet other obligations such as debt coverage ratios on bonds. To 

Page 166



evaluate 
comprehe
an overvie

the  adequac
ensive rate st
ew of these p

cy  of  the  Tow
tudy  typically
processes).  

wn’s  existing
y consists of 

g  rates,  a  com
following  thr

mprehensive 
ree  interrelat

rate  study w
ted analyses 

was  complet
(Figure 1 pro

ed.  A 
ovides 

 Fi
ef
re
p
an

inancial Plann
fficient  prog
eplacement a
lan should fu
nd Town fisca

ning/Revenue
ram  of  on‐g
activities, and
nd and main
al policies. 

e Requiremen
going  mainte
 retirement o
tain reserve b

nt Analysis: C
nance  and  o
of projected o
balances to a

Create a ten‐y
operating  co
outstanding d
adequate leve

year plan to s
sts,  capital  i
debt. In addit
els based on i

upport an or
improvement
tion, the long
industry stan

derly, 
t  and 
‐term 
dards 

 C
cu
ost of Service
ustomer class

e Analysis: Ide
ses based on 

entifies and a
their demand

apportions an
d on each util

nnual revenue
lity system. 

e requiremennts to the diffferent 

 R
p
o
ba
eq

Figure 1: 

ate  Design: 
roportionate
bjectives can
alanced with 
q

Develops  a
ly  recover  t
n be achieved
the cost of s

a  fixed/varia
he  costs  att
d, such as dis
service object

ble  schedule
tributable  to
scouraging wa
tives to maint

e  of  rates
o  them.  This
asteful water
tain the delic

for  each  cu
s  is  also,  wh
r use. The po
ate balance b

ustomer  cla
here  other  p
olicy objective
between cust

ss  to 
policy 
es are 
tomer 

Financ
The graph
water and
and assum

uity, financi

Comprehens

Surfside, Flori

cial Plan S
hs below  (Fig
d sewer syste
ming little to n

Co
to 

Allocate

al stability an

sive Rate Stu

C

da 

 Summary 
gures 2 and 3
ems  including
no rate increa

R

nsiders both th
collect the ap

Cos

s the revenue 
propo

Revenu

nd resource co

udy Interrela

Compares the r
to determine 

 
3) demonstra
g the FY 10/1
ases over the

ate Design 

he level and st
propiate and t

st of Servic

requirements 
rtionate to cus

ue Requirem

onservation g

ated Analysis

goals.

revenues to th
the overall rat

ate the curren
11 comprehe
e next 4 years

Analysis

tructure of the
argeted level o

e Analysis

to the various 
stomer deman

ment Analy

s 

 

he expenses of 
te adjustment 

nt and projec
nsive rate re
s. 

 rate design 
of revenues

ysis

the utility 
required

customer clas
d

cted  financial
structuring w

sses 

 

l conditions o
with adopted 

of the 
rates 

2 
Page 167



Figure 2: Water System Financial Projection Using FY 10/11 Adopted Water Rates 

 

Figure 3: Sewer System Financial Projection Using FY 10/11 Adopted Sewer Rates 

 

$‐

$200,000 

$400,000 

$600,000 

$800,000 

$1,000,000 

$1,200,000 

$1,400,000 

$1,600,000 

,800,000 

FY 2010/11 FY 2011/12 FY 2012/13 FY 2013/14 FY 2014/15

$1

Operating Expenses CIP (Debt Service) Non‐operating Expenses

Rate Revenue Fund Equity Balance

$‐

$200,000 

$400,000 

$600,000 

$800,000 

$1,000,000 

$1,200,000 

$1,400,000 

$1,600,000 

800,000 

FY 2010/11 FY 2011/12 FY 2012/13 FY 2013/14 FY 2014/15

$1,

Operating Expenses CIP (Debt Service) Non‐operating Expenses

Rate Revenue Fund Equity Balance

Page 168



The graphs below  (Figures 4 and 5) demonstrate  the projected  financial  conditions of  the water and 
sewer  systems  assuming  adoption of  rate  increases  from  the previous  analysis over  the next 4  fiscal 
years. 

Figure 4: Water System Financial Projection Using Water Rate Increases from Prior Rate Analysis 

 

$‐

$200,000 

$400,000 

$600,000 

$800,000 

$1,000,000 

$1,200,000 

$1,400,000 

$1,600,000 

$1,800,000 

$2,000,000 

FY 2010/11 FY 2011/12 FY 2012/13 FY 2013/14 FY 2014/15

Operating Expenses CIP (Debt Service) Non‐operating Expenses

Rate Revenue Fund Equity Balance

Page 169



Figure 5: Sewer System Financial Projection Using Sewer Rate Increases from Prior Rate Analysis 

$‐

$500,000 

$1,000,000 

$1,500,000 

$2,000,000 

$2,500,000 

FY 2010/11 FY 2011/12 FY 2012/13 FY 2013/14 FY 2014/15

Operating Expenses CIP (Debt Service) Non‐operating Expenses

Rate Revenue Fund Equity Balance

 

After  completing  the  financial  plan  and  rate  study,  and  after  several  meetings  with  the  Town 
Commission and Town staff,  the  following  tables  (Tables 1, 2 and 3) present  the rates  for each utility 
system  from  Fiscal  Year  2010/11  through  Fiscal  Year  2014/15.  The  following  report  provides  detail 
regarding the supporting rate analysis and results. The increases for FY 11/12 through FY 14/15 were the 
increases projected in the original analysis which based on current assumptions may not be necessary. 

Table 1: Water Monthly Base Service Charge (Adopted FY 10/11 & Suggested FY 11/12 – FY 14/15) 

 

Meter Size
Adopted  FY 

10/11
Forecast FY 

11/12
Forecast FY 

12/13
Forecast FY 

13/14
Forecast FY 

14/15

5/8" 13.90$       14.60$       15.33$       15.94$       16.58$       
1" 20.22         21.24         22.30         23.19         24.12         

1 1/2" 30.76         32.30         33.91         35.27         36.68         
2" 43.40         45.57         47.85         49.76         51.75         
3" 72.90         76.54         80.37         83.58         86.92         
4" 115.03       120.78       126.82       131.90       137.17       
6" 220.37       231.39       242.96       252.68       262.79       
8" 346.78       364.12       382.33       397.62       413.53       

Sources: Town of Surfside; TischlerBise.

Page 170



Table 2: Water Consumption Charge (Adopted FY 10/11 & Suggested FY 11/12 – FY 14/15) 

 

Table 3: Wastewater Rate Structure (Adopted FY 10/11 & Suggested FY 11/12 – FY 14/15) 

 

Description FY 10/11 FY 11/12 FY 12/13 FY 13/14 FY 14/15

Single-Family Residential (1-4 units)
Block 1 (0 - 6,000 gal/month) 2.97$           3.12$          3.27$           3.40$           3.54$           

Block 2 (6,001 - 12,000 gal/month) 3.56$           3.74$          3.93$           4.09$           4.25$           

Block 3 (above 12,000 gal/month) 5.94$           6.24$          6.55$           6.81$           7.08$           

All Other Customers
Uniform Rate 3.67$           3.85$          4.05$           4.21$           4.38$           

Sources: Town of Surfside; TischlerBise.

Rate per 1,000 gal

Description FY 10/11 FY 11/12 FY 12/13 FY 13/14 FY 14/15

Uniform Variable Rate 5.41$         5.89$         6.31$         6.62$         6.95$         

Monthly Fixed Charge 3.43$         3.74$         4.01$         4.21$         4.42$         

Sources: Town of Surfside; TischlerBise.

Rate per 1,000 gal

Per Account/Dwelling Unit

 

Organization of the Report 
This report  is organized to provide an overview of utility rate setting principles utilized  in this analysis, 
followed by an analysis of the water and sewer enterprise fund budget, and finally a separate detailed 
review of each utility’s revenue requirements and rate design process. The following sections comprise 
the long‐term financial plan and rate study report: 

 Project Background 

 Rate Setting Principles 

 Enterprise Fund Budget Analysis 

 Water Rate Analysis 

 Sewer Rate Analysis 

Town of Surfside, Florida    6 
Page 171



 

Project Background 

Town of Surfside, Florida    7 

The Town of Surfside owns and operates water and sewer systems for residents and businesses within 
Town  limits.  As  of  Fiscal  Year  2009/10,  the  utility  system  provided  service  to  approximately  1,551 
residential and non‐residential potable water and sewer system customer accounts. The Town operates 
each system as a self‐supporting enterprise, with revenues and expenditures accounted for within one 
enterprise fund, separate from other Town enterprise and General Fund activities. 

The Town’s Public Works Department  is responsible for operations and maintenance of water delivery 
and wastewater collection systems. The Town’s potable water  is provided by  the Miami‐Dade County 
Water  and  Sewer  Department  (MDWASD)  which  provides  service  for  approximately  two  million 
customers in Miami‐Dade County. The Town is serviced by the Hialeah‐Prestion Water Treatment Plant 
service area. The source of water is from 45 shallow wells in the Biscayne Acquifer and augmented with 
five Upper Floridian Aquifer deep wells. Projected water supply  to  the Town  is assured  in accordance 
with the MDWASD Water Supply Plan. 

Potable water  is distributed  to  residents and  commercial business by  the Town via approximately 11 
miles of cast iron pipe installed in 1938. Primary mains feeding the system run under the Town’s streets 
and  vary  in  size  from 6‐inches  to 16‐inches  in diameter, which  feed 3‐inch and  four‐inch water  lines 
located along  the  rear property  lines. Disrepair and  corrosion  for over 70  years has  created a  fragile 
water distribution system  that has  repetitive breaks,  loss of potable water, pavement  restoration and 
other associated expenses. The 5‐year Water Capital Improvement Program (CIP) addresses these major 
improvement needs within a two‐year period beginning next fiscal year.  

A funding plan for these  improvements  is  included  in this rate analysis and consists of current reserve 
funding,  a  Building  Better  Communities  (BBC)  countywide  bond  referendum  ratified  in  2004,  and  a 
projected bond  issuance secured by current and projected rate revenues. At the time of the prior rate 
analysis conducted in 2010, the Town was planning for a utility‐related bond issue of approximately $13 
million to be used for water, sewer and stormwater  improvements ($10 million allocated to water and 
sewer). Currently, the Town  is considering a $16 million bond  issue related to utilities as well as other 
improvements  such  as  street  trees,  street  signage,  traffic  calming  devices  and  possibly  underground 
utility projects ($10 million allocated to water and sewer). 

The Town’s sanitary sewer system is divided into two nearly equal area basins. It is interconnected with 
the MDWASD system; however, the Town maintains its own sewer collection system and two pumping 
stations. By agreement with the City of Miami Beach, the Town of Surfside and the Town of Bal Harbour 
share  a  sanitary  force main  that  connects  to  the  City  of Miami  Beach  transmission  system.  The  tri‐
agency agreement provides for the transmission of sewage via force mains to the MDWASD system and 
eventually to the treatment plant and disposal. 

The  Town’s  sanitary  sewer  collection  system  failed  to  meet  the  Miami‐Dade  County  (MDCC) 
Infiltration/Inflow  standards and exceeded  the pump  station  run  time  limits. This  situation prompted 

Page 172



violation notices commencing in 1983. The non‐conformance with the MDCC Section 24‐42.2 resulted in 
a Consent Agreement that required the Town to complete a Sanitary Sewer Evaluation Study (SSES). The 
Sewer  Rehabilitation  Plan  was  broken  into  three  phases  to  bring  the  Town  into  compliance  with 
mandates  from  the  U.S.  Environmental  Protection  Agency,  the MDCC,  and  the Miami‐Dade  County 
Department of Environmental Resources Management (DERM). The three phases are as follows: 

 Phase  I:  This  phase was  completed  by  placing  full  dish  gaskets  on  all manhole  openings.  In 
addition, any  rainwater  leaders  found  to be attached  to  the  sewer  lines will be disconnected 
from the sanitary sewer system. All service laterals are planned to be either replaced or lined to 
reduce infiltration of groundwater. 

 Phase II: This phase includes the investigation of sewer problems using video, smoke testing and 
other  techniques  to determine  the  sources of  infiltration and  inflow. All broken  sanitary  lines 
will be repaired or lined, as determined by the analysis. Severely deteriorated manholes will be 
sealed with a “Supercoat” system or full  liner to reduce  infiltration. Costs and unit prices have 
been established for lining the moderately cracked pipes and point repairs for the broken pipes. 

 Phase  III:  This phase will  consist of  renovating  the  existing pump  stations  and  installation of 
emergency generators to bring the system back into compliance with the current law, codes and 
Consent Decree. 

Similar  to  the water  system,  the  sewer  5‐year Water  Capital  Improvement  Program  (CIP)  addresses 
these major improvement needs within a two‐year period beginning FY 10/11. A funding plan for these 
improvements  is  included  in this rate analysis and consists of current reserve  funding and a projected 
bond issuance secured by current and projected rate revenues. 

Key Financial Plan Objectives 
Several objectives were identified during the study to guide decisions regarding the financial plans and 
rate structures. The major objectives of the study were: 

 Utility  rates  should  generate  sufficient  revenues  to  meet  operating  costs,  capital  program 
requirements  through  related  debt  service  obligations,  and  maintain  targeted  reserves 
consistent with sound financial management practices (see detailed reserve discussion below) 

 Utility rates should be set proportionate to the cost of providing utility service to each customer 
class to promote fairness and equity 

 A financial plan that minimizes future rate impacts on existing and new customers 

 Utility  rate structures should be supported by a  financial model  that  is easy  to update should 
costs  and  assumptions  change  in  the  future  beyond what was  projected  at  the  time  of  this 
report 

Net Asset Targets – Currently  the Town designates  reserves as a  component of Net Assets. The Net 
Asset  balance  consists  of  investment  in  capital  assets  and  restricted  and  unrestricted  assets  for  a 
combined water and sewer total net assets. Some of the funds have been utilized for capital assets while 
renewal and replacement are restricted for capital project needs. Finally, unrestricted net assets can be 
used  for any  future  item  related  to  the utility  fund operations or  capital needs. The  recent  five‐year 
financial plan for FY 10/11 through FY 14/15 has developed information that should eventually become 

Page 173



 

Town of Surfside, Florida    9 

policy. For example,  in  the prior  rate analysis, we  recommended  that  the Town  strive  to meet  target 
policy levels for three restricted fund categories for each utility system:  

 Unrestricted Net Assets – Operating Reserves (to be set up to 25 percent of each utility’s annual 
Operations and Maintenance Expenses). This component would ensure each utility system has 
sufficient  cash  on  hand  to  cover  emergencies,  working  capital  needs  or  unexpected 
contingencies  associated  with  operating  the  utility.  Three  months  or  a  25  percent  reserve 
balance  is  a  standard  within  the  utility  rate  setting  industry  and  gives  the  Town  adequate 
coverage. 

 Restricted Net Assets  – Renewal  and Replacement Reserves  (to be  set  up  to  2  times  annual 
renewal  and  replacement  costs  for  the  current  5‐year  improvement  plan  for  each  utility 
system).  This  component  would  ensure  each  utility  system  has  sufficient  reserves  to  cover 
future major  capital  repair  and  replacement  (R&R) needs  for  a  short‐term period until  Town 
officials decide  to  issue  future debt  if major upgrades or  replacements are  required, or minor 
R&R needs on an on‐going basis without the need for additional borrowing. There is no industry 
standard  amount  to  be  set  aside  for  future  R&R  needs. However, many  rate  structures  and 
studies  include some amount of future annualized capital project costs for their R&R reserves. 
For this analysis, we utilized the upcoming 5‐year CIP for each utility as our basis and projected 
annualized  impact of each CIP. We believe  that a 2‐year annualized  figure will give  the Town 
enough  R&R  reserves  to  fund  future  capital  needs  in  the  short  term  without  relying  on 
additional rate increases or emergency loans. 

 Restricted Net Assets – Rate Stabilization Reserves (to be set up to 10 percent of each utility’s 
current  year projected  rate  revenues).  This  component would ensure each utility  system has 
sufficient  reserves  to  handle  potential  short‐term  cash  flow  interruptions  associated  with 
contracted water purchase and sewage disposal costs. While there is no industry standard for a 
target amount of rate stabilization reserves, our experience demonstrates a 10 percent figure is 
prudent and not a significant burden on utility rates. 

In reviewing  the above objectives,  it should be noted  that  the Town has  limited control over external 
forces such as growth, consumer behavior, and system usage. Recognizing these factors, we believe that 
the recommendations  in this study provide a fair, reasonable, and balanced set of suggested rates (FY 
11/12 through FY 14/15) for the Town that, to the extent possible, meets these key objectives. 

 

Page 174



 

Rate Setting Principles 

Town of Surfside, Florida    10 

The primary objective of conducting a comprehensive  rate study  is  to determine  the adequacy of  the 
existing rates  (pricing and structure) and provide the basis for any necessary adjustments to meet the 
Departments operating and capital needs. The Town desires rate structures that fully fund operations, 
maintenance,  and  present  and  future  capital  costs.  Furthermore,  the  Town  desired  to  develop  a 
conservation‐based  water  and  sewer  rate  structure. Water  scarcity  is  a  growing  concern  for  South 
Florida communities. The most significant  influence this situation places on the Town  is  large spikes  in 
past water purchase costs from MDWASD. Therefore, significant consideration and dialogue took place 
between Town staff and the consulting team to review the existing rate structure and propose changes 
to meet this additional objective. 

Over the past years, many generally accepted principles or guidelines have been established to assist in 
developing utility rates. The purpose of this section of the report is to provide a general background of 
the methodology and guidelines used  for  setting  cost based utility  rates. This will provide  the  reader 
with a higher‐level understanding of the general process detailed later in this report. 

Established Principles & Guidelines 
As a practical matter, there should be a general set of principles to develop rates. The American Water 
Works Association (AWWA) establishes these principles  in the M1 Manual – Principles of Water Rates, 
Fees and Charges. For sewer rate setting, the Water Environment Federation (WEF) establishes similar 
guidelines.  These  guiding principles help  to  ensure  there  is  a  consistent nationwide  approach  that  is 
employed by utilities in the development of their rates. 

Provided below is a short summary listing the established guidelines around which public utilities should 
consider when setting their rates. These closely reflect the Town’s specified objectives. 

 Rates  should be  cost‐based and equitable, and  set at a  level  such  that  they provide  revenue 
sufficiency. 

 Rates  and  process  of  allocating  costs  should  conform  to  generally  accepted  rate  setting 
techniques. 

 Rates  should  provide  reliable,  stable  and  adequate  revenue  to meets  the  utility’s  financial, 
operation, and regulatory requirements. 

 Rate levels should be stable from year to year (limit “rate shocks”). 

 Rates should be easy to understand and administer. 

These guidelines, along with the Town’s objectives, have been utilized within this study to help develop 
utility rates that are cost‐based and equitable. 

Page 175



Revenue Requirements 
The method used by most public utilities  to establish  their  revenue  requirements  is  called  the  “cash 
basis” approach of  setting  rates. As  the name  implies, a public utility  combines  its  cash expenditures 
over a period of  time  to determine  their  recommended  revenues  from user  rates and other  forms of 

is” methodology. income. The figure below presents the “cash bas

Figure 6: Overview of the “Cash Basis” Design 
__________________________________________ 

+ Operation and Maintenance Expenses 
+ Taxes/Transfers 
+ Capital Additions Financed with Rate Revenue  
+ Debt Service (Principal and Interest)  
= Total Revenue Requirements 
__________________________________________ 

Financial Planning 
In  the  development  of  the  revenue  requirements, many  assumptions  are  utilized  to  project  future 
expenditures,  customer  and  consumption  growth,  and  necessary  revenue  adjustments.  The  Town’s 
budget documents are used as the  initial starting point however; assumptions play a necessary role  in 
projecting future recommended revenue.   

Conservative growth assumptions and prudent financial planning are fundamental to ensuring adequate 
rate  revenue  to  promote  financial  stability.  The  financial model  developed  by  the  consulting  team 
appropriately  considers  the  Town’s  projected  debt  service  coverage  ratios  and  operating  reserve 
balances.  In addition,  it  is recommended that the Town begin recognizing some of the cost associated 
with  future  capital  replacements  that  will  allow  the  accumulation  of  a  reserve  for  repair  and 
replacement of depreciated items. This enables the Town to mitigate future rate increases as money for 
repair and replacement is collected automatically each year. 

Rate Design 
The  final  element,  the  rate  design  process,  applies  the  results  from  the  revenue  requirements  to 
develop  rates  that  achieve  the  general  guidelines  and objectives of  the  Town.  These objectives may 
include consideration of cost‐based rates, but may also consider items such as ability to pay, continuity 
of  past  rate  philosophy,  conservation,  encouragement  of  economic  development,  ease  of 
administration, and legal requirements. While cost‐based rates are an important objective, all objectives 
should be balanced appropriately.   

While the general description of the utility rate setting process discussed in this section of the report is 
simplified and condensed, it does address the underlying fundamentals. One of the key principles for a 
comprehensive rate study  is found  in economic theory, which suggests the price of a commodity must 
roughly equal  its  cost  if equity among  customers  is  to be maintained –  i.e.  cost‐based.  For example, 

Page 176



 

Town of Surfside, Florida    12 

capacity‐related  costs  are  usually  incurred  by  a  water  utility  to  meet  peak  use  requirements. 
Consequently,  the  customers  causing  peak  demands  should  properly  pay  for  the  demand‐related 
facilities  in proportion to their contribution to maximum demands. Through refinement of costing and 
pricing  techniques,  consumers  of  a  product  are  given  a  more  accurate  price  signal  of  what  the 
commodity costs to produce and deliver.  

The  above  fundamentals  have  considerable  foundation  in  economic  literature.  They  also  serve  as 
primary guidelines  for  rate design by most utility  regulators and administrative agencies. This  “price‐
equals‐cost” theory provides the basis for much of the subsequent analysis and comment. This theory is 
particularly  important,  as  the  rate  structure  has  been  modified  to  encourage  conservation,  while 
maintaining this economic principle. 

Rate Setting Principles Summary 
This section of  the  report has provided a brief  introduction  to  the general principles,  techniques, and 
economic theory used to set utility rates. These principles, techniques, and economic theory were the 
starting  point  for  this  rate  study  and  the  groundwork  used  to meet  the  Town’s  key  objectives  in 
analyzing and adjusting its utility rates. 

Page 177



 

Utility Enterprise Fund Budget Analysis 

Town of Surfside, Florida    13 

This section describes the assumptions utilized and budgetary figures presented and projected (revenue 
and expenditures) for purposes of the water and sewer utility rate analysis  

Project Assumptions 
For the Town of Surfside to more accurately project future revenues and expenditures, growth, inflation 
and financial factors are estimated for each utility system (Table 4).  

Escalation Factors – Because of current economic conditions and the developed nature of the Town, we 
have applied a nominal growth rate to new customer connections for the projection period of five fiscal 
years.  In  addition  to  these  factors, we  have  also  included  several  escalation  or  inflation  factors  for 
various operating  and  capital  items  associated with both utilities. Where past  annual  increases were 
consistent, we applied historical percentages to our forecast analysis. Where past annual increases were 
volatile or lacked a consistent pattern, we applied percentage increases based on our past experiences 
in utility rate and projection analyses. 

Financial Ratios and  Inputs – Certain  financial  ratios and assumption are utilized  to account  for Town 
central service support of the utility systems, bond covenant debt coverage ratios and financing terms 
for project revenue bonds to be  issued, and an affordability  index to demonstrate the affect potential 
rate increases might have on Surfside customers household income levels. 

Utility Revenues and Expenditures 
In the original analysis, water sales and sewer service charges are presented with no rate increases and 
are inflated by a nominal growth factor of 0.25 percent per year to account for modest new connection 
growth. Other  revenue  items  are  assumed  to  remain  flat  to  demonstrate  a  conservative  projection 
analysis. Budget line items are categorized into functional components to be utilized in the forthcoming 
cost allocation analysis. Budget  line  items are escalated by various projection factors found  in Table 4. 
The  division  of  costs  is  largely  based  on  the  ratio  of  the  two  largest  line  items  in  the  fund: Water 
Purchases and Sewage Disposal. The exception to this approach is “Miscellaneous Maintenance – Water 
Tests” which applies solely to the water utility and allocated accordingly. 

Page 178



 

Town of Surfside, Florida    14 

Table 4: Escalation and Input Assumptions 

 

Description
Annual 
Figure Notes

Escalators
Residential Customer Growth Rate 0.25% Annual Rate
Non-residential Customer Growth Rate 0.25% Annual Rate
Personnel Costs 2.00% Annual Rate
Water Purchases FY 11/12 7.00% Annual Rate
Water Purchases FY 12/13 0.00% Annual Rate
Water Purchases FY 13/14 3.00% Annual Rate
Water Purchases FY 14/15 3.00% Annual Rate
Sewage Disposal Costs FY 11/12 7.00% Annual Rate
Sewage Disposal Costs FY 12/13 -5.00% Reduction due to reduced infiltration inflow.
Sewage Disposal Costs FY 13/14 3.00% Annual Rate
Sewage Disposal Costs FY 14/15 3.00% Annual Rate
Operating Costs 2.00% Annual Rate
Capital Outlay (excl Improvements) 5.00% Annual Rate
Depreciation Costs 2.00% Annual Rate

Fund Equity Targets
O&M Reserves 25.0% 25% of current year O&M

Water Capital Reserves 420,358$        2x annualized costs of renewal and replacement of 
FY11-FY15 CIP

Sewer Capital Reserves 521,202$        2x annualized costs of renewal and replacement of 
FY11-FY15 CIP

Rate Stabilization Reserves 10.0% 10% of current year projected rate revenues

Financial Ratios and Inputs
Indirect Cost Allocation (GF Reimburse) 10.0% of central service support to utility fund
Debt Service Coverage Ratio 110% 1.10x (net operating income/annual debt service)

Price Elasticity Applied to Consumption 3.0%

Notes:
Interest rate on upcoming bond issue assumed by Town Finance Director to be 5.0 percent.
Bond issue changed to $16 million for water, sewer and stormwater plus additional street improvements.

Sources: Town of Surfside; TischlerBise.

 

Page 179



 

Water Rate Analysis 

Revenue Requirements Analysis 
The  first  step  in  developing  the  revenue  requirements  is  to  develop  a  projection  of  revenues  from 
existing  rates  and  expenditures  for  operations  and  capital  needs  and  was  completed  in  the  prior 
analysis. The utility  capital  improvements project  (CIP) needs  for  the water utility are  summarized  in 
Table  5.  This  table  presents  the water‐related  5‐year  capital  improvement  plan  as  prepared  by  the 
Town’s engineering consultant. The table  lists the outside funding sources to be utilized for the capital 
projects including accumulated restricted and unrestricted net asset reserves, Build Better Communities 
(BBC) reimbursement monies, nominal water impact fees, and bond proceeds from a proposed revenue 
bonds  issue  for  both water  and  sewer  related  capital  construction  projects.  The  combined  effect  of 
these outside  funding sources  is  to eliminate  the need  for  future rate revenues  to directly  fund  these 

d to fund the debt service obligations on the revenue bonds. projects. However, the rates will be require

Table 5: Water CIP and Funding Sources 

 

Project
Approved FY 

10/11
Forecast FY 

11/12
Forecast FY 

12/13
Forecast FY 

13/14
Forecast FY 

14/15 5-year Total

Engineering/Architecture 83,200$          31,000$        -$                 -$                 -$                 114,200$      
Construction 4,158,000       1,766,371     -                   -                   -                   5,924,371     
Prior CIP Appropriations (carry over to next FY) 508,974          -                   -                   -                   -                   508,974        

Total Water Capital Projects 4,750,174$     1,797,371$   -$                 -$                 -$                 6,547,545$   

Less: Outside Funding Sources
Water Impact Fees 500$              500$             500$             500$             500$             
Restricted Net Assets - Repair & Replacement 917,906          -                   -                   -                   -                   
Unrestricted Assets 172,000          -                   
BBC Reimbursement 715,000          -                   -                   -                   -                   
Revenue Bonds Proceeds 5,000,000       -                   -                   -                   -                   
Carry-over from Prior FY -                    2,055,232     258,361        258,861        259,361        

Total Outside Funding 6,805,406$     2,055,732$   258,861$      259,361$      259,861$      

Balance to Carry Over to Next FY 2,055,232$     258,361$      258,861$      259,361$      259,861$      

Net CIP Projects Funded from Rates -$                  -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 

Source: Town of Surfside; TischlerBise.

These  components  comprise  the  foundation  of  the  revenue  requirement  analysis. Given  the  current 
economic  climate,  the  consulting  team  facilitated  several meetings with  Town  staff  and  committee 
members  to  assure  the  accuracy  of  financial  and  growth  variables  in  developing  the  revenue 
requirement  analysis.  Particular  emphasis  was  placed  on  attempting  to  minimize  rates,  yet  still 
encompass  adequate  funds  to  support  the  operational  activities  and  capital  projects  throughout  the 
study period. The revenue requirements analysis figure, presented below in Table 6, provides a basis for 
evaluating  the  timing  and  level  of  water  revenue  increases  required  to  meet  the  projected 
recommended revenue for the study period. The percentages shown at the bottom of the figure show 
the adopted FY 10/11 and recommended revenue adjustments  for FY 11/12 through FY 14/15. Please 

Town of Surfside, Florida    15 
Page 180



note that the recommended revenue increase percentages do not equate to the rate increase for each 
customer.  Rather,  these  percentage  figures  describe  the  amount  of  additional  rate  revenue 

ions and policies.  recommended to meet all utility obligat

Table 6: Water Revenue Adjustments 

 

Description
Approved  FY 

10/11
Forecast FY 

11/12
Forecast FY 

12/13
Forecast FY 

13/14
Forecast FY 

14/15

Operating Revenue
Water Sales (before increase) 1,305,255$      1,308,518$      1,311,789$      1,315,069$      1,318,357$      
Tapping Fees 300                 300                 300                 300                 300                 
Penalties 870                 870                 870                 870                 870                 
Total Operating Revenue 1,306,425        1,309,688        1,312,959        1,316,239        1,319,527        

Year
Revenue 
Increase

Months 
Effective

2010/11 18.00% 12 234,946           235,533           236,122           236,712           237,304           
2011/12 5.00% 12 -                      77,203             77,396             77,589             77,783             
2012/13 5.00% 12 -                      -                     81,265             81,469             81,672             
2013/14 4.00% 12 -                      -                     -                      68,434             68,605             
2014/15 4.00% 12 -                      -                     -                      -                     71,349             

Total Additional Water Sales Revenue 234,946           312,736           394,783           464,204           536,713           

Total Operating Revenue 1,541,371        1,622,424        1,707,742        1,780,442        1,856,239        

O&M Expenses
Personnel 141,450           144,279           147,165           150,108           153,110           
Operations 125,301           127,807           130,363           132,971           135,630           
Water Purchases (MDWSD) 637,000           681,590           681,590           702,038           723,099           
Total O&M Expenses 903,752           953,677           959,118           985,117           1,011,839        

Net Operating Income 637,619           668,747           748,624           795,326           844,400           

Debt Service
Annual Debt Service (Estimated) 520,425           520,729           520,527           519,818           520,628           
Total Debt Service 520,425           520,729           520,527           519,818           520,628           

Calculated Debt Coverage Ratio 123% 128% 144% 153% 162%
Targeted Debt Coverage Ratio 110% 110% 110% 110% 110%

Non-Operating Revenue   
Interest Income 1,064               1,064              1,064               1,064              1,064              
Total Non-Operating Revenue 1,064               1,064              1,064               1,064              1,064              

Non-Operating Expenses
Capital Outlay (excl Improvements) 5,220               5,481              5,755               6,043              6,345              
Rate Funded Capital Projects -                      -                     -                      -                     -                     
Total Non-Operating Expenses 5,220               5,481              5,755               6,043              6,345              

Net Income (Loss) 1
113,038$         143,601$         223,406$         270,529$         318,491$         

1. Positive net income to be applied to fund balances.

Source: Town of Surfside; TischlerBise.

Additional Rate Revenue Required

Page 181



For  the  original  rate  analysis,  we  assumed  a  1.25x  debt  service  coverage  ratio.  Based  on  current 
information,  this  revised analysis utilizes a 1.10x coverage  ratio based on  recent discussions with  the 
Town’s financial advisor. Please note that the revenue  increases  included  in the prior rate analysis and 
this revised analysis will produce revenues well above those required to meet this lower coverage ratio. 
Figure 7  illustrates  the breakdown of  the major budget components of  the water utility. As  the chart 
demonstrates, the primary costs of operating the water utility are water purchase costs from MDWASD 

s. and future debt service for needed capital improvement

Figure 7: Major Budget Components of Water System 

 

Personnel
10%

Operations
9%

Water Purchases 
(MDWSD)

45%

Annual Debt 
Service 

(Estimated)
36%

Capital Outlay 
(excl 

Improvements)
0%

Table 7 on the next page presents the fund balance information utilizing the target fund balance figures 
for operating, capital and rate stabilization reserves. 

Cost of Service Analysis 
The cost of service analysis is a systematic process by which revenue requirements are used to generate 
a classification of fair and equitable costs  in proportion to the service received for each user class. The 
cost  of  service  allocation  conducted  in  this  study  is  established  on  the  base‐extra  capacity method 
endorsed by the AWWA. Under the base‐extra capacity method, revenue requirements are allocated to 
the  different  user  classes  proportionate  to  their  use  on  the water  system. Allocations  are  based  on 

Page 182



average day  (base) usage, maximum day  (peak) usage, meters and services, and billing and collection. 
Use of this methodology results in an AWWA‐accepted cost distribution among customer classes and a 
means of calculating and designing rates to proportionately recover those costs.  

 

Table 7: Water Fund Balance Information 

 

Description
Approved  FY 

10/11
Forecast FY 

11/12
Forecast FY 

12/13
Forecast FY 

13/14
Forecast FY 

14/15

Total Fund Equity - Water Only
Beginning FY 10/11 Balance 1

1,137,906$      

Restricted Net Assets - Renewal & Replacement Reserves
Beginning Balance 917,906$         113,038$         515,001$         515,001$         515,001$         
Restricted Net Assets to Fund Water CIP Projects (917,906)          -                     -                      -                     -                     
Surplus from CIP Program (after bond issue) -                      258,361           -                      -                     -                     
Deposit from Positive Net Income 113,038           143,601           -                      -                     -                     

Ending Balance 113,038$         515,001$         515,001$         515,001$         515,001$         
Target Balance: Up to 2x Annualized R&R 420,358           420,358           420,358           420,358           420,358           
Target Met? NO YES YES YES YES
% of Target 27% 123% 123% 123% 123%

Net Income Remaining -                      -                     223,406           270,529           318,491           

Restricted Net Assets - Rate Stabilization Reserves
Beginning Balance -$                    -$                    -$                    170,657$         177,927$         

Deposit from Positive Net Income -                      -                     170,657           7,270              7,580              
Ending Balance -$                    -$                    170,657$         177,927$         185,507$         

Target Balance: Up to 10% of Rate Revenues 154,020           162,125           170,657           177,927           185,507           
Target Met? NO NO YES YES YES
% of Target 0% 0% 100% 100% 100%

Net Income Remaining -                      -                     52,749             263,259           310,912           

Unrestricted Net Assets - Operating Reserves
Beginning Balance 220,000$         48,000$           48,000$           100,749$         364,008$         
Unrestricted Net Assets to Fund Water CIP Projects (172,000)          -                     -                      -                     -                     
Deposit from Positive Net Income -                      -                     52,749             263,259           310,912           
Ending Balance 48,000$           48,000$           100,749$         364,008$         674,919$         

Target Balance: Up to 25% of Current Year O&M 225,938           238,419           239,780           246,279           252,960           
Target Met? NO NO NO YES YES
% of Target 21% 20% 42% 148% 267%

1. Water utility's share of total enterprise fund equity balance.

Source: Town of Surfside; TischlerBise.

See below for fund balance allocation (dependent on Town approval)

 

The  resulting  functionalization  factors  that  appear  at  the  bottom  of  Table  8  are  utilized  to  allocate 
system  operating  and  capital  costs  to  each  customer  class  based  on  the  each  class’  demand  on  the 
system.  In  Table  9,  the  functionalization  percentages  are  used  to  allocate  revenue  requirements 
between  variable  costs of  the water  system  (base and peak demands) and  fixed  costs of  the  system 
(meters and  services and  customer accounts). The  final  totals are  then used  to design  the  fixed base 
charges based on meter size and the variable rates per 1,000 gallons consumed. 

Page 183



Table 8: Classification of Water Expenses by Function  

 

Description
Total Water 

Expenses
Base Water 

Demand
Peak Water 

Demand
Customer 
Accounts

Meters & 
Services

Basis of 
Classification

Source of Supply

Water Purchases 672,000$        222,681$        449,319$        -$                   -$                   
33.1% Base  66.9% 

Peak

Water Tests 5,000             1,657             3,343             -                    -                    
33.1% Base  66.9% 

Peak
Total Source of Supply Expense 677,000          224,338          452,662          -                    -                    

Water Distribution

Electricity 18,735            6,208             12,527            -                    -                    
33.1% Base  66.9% 

Peak

Maintenance - Distribution 48,666            16,222            16,222            -                    16,222            
33.3% Base  33.3% 
Peak 33.3% Meters

Total Water Distribution Expense 67,401            22,430            28,749            -                    16,222            

General & Administrative

Personnel 137,087          -                    -                    68,543            68,543            
50% Customers  50% 

Meters

Indirect Cost Allocation 28,160            -                    -                    14,080            14,080            
50% Customers  50% 

Meters

Miscellaneous G&A 81,029            -                    -                    40,515            40,515            
50% Customers  50% 

Meters
Total G&A Expense 246,276          -                    -                    123,138          123,138          

Capital Requirements

Capital Outlay (excl Improvements) 5,220             2,088             2,088             522                522                

40% Base  40% Peak  
10% Customers  10% 

Meters

Debt Service 388,154          155,262          155,262          38,815            38,815            
40% Base  40% Peak  
10% Customers  10% 

M tTotal Capital Requirements Expense 393,374          157,349          157,349          39,337            39,337            

TOTAL FUNCTIONALIZED COSTS 1,384,051$     404,117$        638,761$        162,475$        178,697$        

FUNCTIONALIZATION FACTOR 100.0% 29.2% 46.2% 11.7% 12.9%

Sources: Town of Surfside; TischlerBise

 

Table 9: Allocation of Revenue Requirements by Functional Percentages  

 

Description
 Functionalization 

Factor FY 10/11 FY 11/12 FY 12/13 FY 13/14 FY 14/15

Base Water Demand 29.2% 449,710$    473,376$    498,288$    519,515$    541,646$    
Peak Water Demand 46.2% 710,826      748,234      787,609      821,161      856,143      
Customer Accounts 11.7% 180,806      190,321      200,337      208,871      217,769      
Meters & Services 12.9% 198,858      209,323      220,339      229,725      239,512      
Rate Revenue Required 100.0% 1,540,201$  1,621,254$  1,706,572$  1,779,272$  1,855,069$  

Sources: Town of Surfside; TischlerBise.

Page 184



Rate Design Analysis 
The final step of the rate study  is the design of the water rates to collect the desired  level of revenue 
determined in the revenue requirement analysis. During this analysis, consideration is given to both the 
level of rates and the structure of the rates. This section reviews the water rate design for the Town. 

Rate Design Balance 
There is some flexibility  in the design of the rate structure to meet the Town’s pricing objectives while 
being consistent with cost of service principles. There are positives and negatives associated with  the 
decrease in fixed revenue. Typically, a larger percentage of fixed rate revenue results in greater revenue 
stability since a greater percentage of total revenues are not influenced by fluctuations in consumption 
due  to  the  weather.  At  the  same  time,  the  decrease  in  fixed  revenue  will  improve  equitability 
concerning cost recovery and the impact of conservation measures while reducing revenue stability, as 
users have  greater  control over  their  consumption  and ultimately  their bill.  The  fixed portion of  the 
water rates generates an estimated 25 percent of total rate revenue 

Criteria and Considerations 
In determining the appropriate rate level and structure, the consulting team, in conjunction with Town 
staff, analyzed various financial scenarios concerning the adjustments and the implications attributed to 
those decisions. 

A simplified list of some of the design considerations that were reviewed is listed: 

 Consideration of the customer’s ability to pay 

 Clear and understandable rates 

 Easily administered 

 Conservation measures 

 Revenue stability (month to month and year to year) 

 Efficient allocation of resources 

 Implementation of Capital Improvements (rate of improving the existing system) 

 Fair and equitable (cost‐based) rates 

Every  consideration  has  merit  and  plays  an  important  role  in  a  comprehensive  rate  study.  When 
developing  the  Town’s  rates  all  of  the  aforementioned  criteria  were  taken  into  consideration. 
Determining  the  appropriate  balance  is  crucial,  as  some  of  the  criteria  sometime  conflict with  one 
another,  i.e.  the  customers  ability  to  pay  and  cost‐based.  In  designing  rates,  there  will  always  be 
concessions between the various objectives; however, we attempt to ensure the rates meet all of the 
leading objectives of the Town.    

Overview of Existing Rate Structure 
The  Town has one water  rate  structure  for  its  consumption  charges:  a uniform block  rate  structure. 
Regardless of consumption amounts (above a minimum allotment per meter size), the rate per unit of 
water  (1,000  gallons)  is  consistent.  There  are  some merits  to  this  approach  such  as  some degree of 

Page 185



certainty  to  a  customer  bill  as  well  as  a moderate  incentive  to  conserve  water.  However,  a more 
effective  conservation  pricing  structure  utilizes  an  inverted  block,  or  inclining  block,  approach.  This 
structure increases the marginal price of a unit of water above certain thresholds. Figure 8 provides an 
overview of the two rate structures. 

Figure 8: Consumption Charge Approaches

 

UNIFORM RATE STRUCTURE
The cost per unit of consumption under a uniform rate 

structure does not increase or decrease with 
additional units of consumption

Usage
INVERTED BLOCK RATE STRUCTURE

The cost per unit of consumption under a inverted block 
rate structure increases with additional units of 

consumption

Usage

Per Unit 
Cost

Per Unit 
Cost

The former water rate structure  included two components: a bi‐monthly allotment of water use based 
on  a  customer’s meter  size  and  a  consumption  charge  of  $3.54  per  1,000  gallons  of water  use.  As 
discussed  above,  the  consumption  rate  is  the  same  rate  regardless  of  customer  class  and  does  not 
increase  or  decrease  with  amount  of  water  use.  The  bi‐monthly  charge  includes  minimum  water 
amounts depending on meter  size.  For example,  a  customer with  a 5/8  inch water meter  is  allotted 
12,000 gallons of water use on a bi‐monthly basis. This allotment is included in the fixed base charge. If a 
5/8 inch meter customer uses no water up to 12,000 gallons during a billing period, the corresponding 
base  charge  is  the  same  amount  (currently  $42.48  for  a  5/8  inch meter  customer).  If  a  customer 
consumes water above the allotted amount, the water bill is calculated using the consumption charge of 
$3.54 per 1,000 gallons times the amount of water. 

For this analysis, for this analysis the Town eliminated the minimum allotment approach and adopted a 
cost‐based approach  including a  fixed meter charge based on a customer’s meter  size and a variable 
rate for water consumed on a 1,000‐gallon basis. We have two reasons for this modification: 

 Customer Equity.  We believe the current rate system to be inequitable to a group of customers 
who use  less water  than  the  allotted  amounts.  The  current  rate  structure penalizes  efficient 
customers and customers that use less water due to being a smaller customer (by way of small 
family size, small business, etc.). An efficient or small customer will typically use less than 12,000 
gallons  in  a  two‐month  period.  In  fact,  Town  billing  records  for  the  past  year  indicate  that 
approximately 34 percent of all water customers use  less  than 12,000 gallons  in a bi‐monthly 
period. Whether  they use 1,000  gallons or 11,000 gallons,  they  are  still billed  at  the 12,000‐
gallon amount, or $42.48. 

Page 186



 Revenue Stability and Cost‐of Service‐Based.  Every utility has certain costs that must be funded 
regardless of water consumption amounts. These costs are fixed and typically do not fluctuate. 
If a customer does not use any water during a billing period, there are still costs associated for 
past  use  and  future  service  availability.  These  items  include  but  are  not  limited  to  capital 
replacement  for past use, maintenance of assets  to provide water  in  the  future, debt service, 
and  customer  service. A  fixed  charge  system without minimum water allotments ensures  the 
utility’s fixed costs will still be met while creating a more equitable billing system. 

Table 10 below presents the recently adopted and suggested future fixed base charges by meter size in 
a monthly format. The fixed charges are calculated using a meter equivalent approach with the 5/8 inch 
meter as the baseline meter size  in the analysis. As a meter size  increases, the hydraulic capacity also 
increases thus allowing the customer to draw greater amounts of water when needed. With this greater 
ability  to  draw water,  there  is  a  corresponding  increase  in  costs.  Therefore,  larger meters will  have 
larger  fixed  charges  associated  with  them.  This  approach  is  a  standard  in  the  water  rate‐making 
industry. Table 11 presents the meter equivalency approach and corresponding meter ratios. To ensure 
clarification,  the  base  charges  for  FY  2010/11  through  FY  2014/15  do  not  include minimum  water 
amounts. 

Table 10: Fixed Monthly Base Charges by Meter Size (Adopted and Suggested per Prior Analysis) 

Table 11: Meter Equivalency Ratios  

 

Meter Size
Adopted  FY 

10/11
Forecast FY 

11/12
Forecast FY 

12/13
Forecast FY 

13/14
Forecast FY 

14/15

5/8" 13.90$       14.60$       15.33$       15.94$       16.58$       
1" 20.22         21.24         22.30         23.19         24.12         

1 1/2" 30.76         32.30         33.91         35.27         36.68         
2" 43.40         45.57         47.85         49.76         51.75         
3" 72.90         76.54         80.37         83.58         86.92         
4" 115.03       120.78       126.82       131.90       137.17       
6" 220.37       231.39       242.96       252.68       262.79       
8" 346.78       364.12       382.33       397.62       413.53       

Sources: Town of Surfside; TischlerBise.

M G M

 

eter Size PM eter Ratio

5/8" 20      1.00                
1" 50      2.50                

1 1/2" 100    5.00                
2" 160    8.00                
3" 300    15.00              
4" 500    25.00              
6" 1,000 50.00              
8" 1,600 80.00              

Sources: AWWA M-5 Manual; Town of Surfside; 
TischlerBise.

Page 187



For  the  variable  consumption  charge  analysis, we present  two options: 1) maintain  the uniform  rate 
approach  regardless  of  customer  class  and  consumption  amounts,  and  2)  an  inclining  block  rate 
structure  for  residential  customers  and  a  uniform  block  structure  for  all  other  customer  classes 
(apartments, commercial and place of worship). 

The inclining block approach is one that sends a price signal to excessive water users to cut back on their 
wasteful water consumption. Very efficient or low water users would be rewarded with a lower rate per 
1,000  gallons  compared  to  the  current  uniform  rate. We  applied  the  inclining  block method  to  the 
residential customers only  for  two reasons: 1)  there  is  less variation  in residential water use between 
each customer compared to other customer classes and therefore average use figures easily apply to all 
residential customers, and 2)  industry experience demonstrates that residential properties, particularly 
single‐family  detached  residential  customers,  are most  able  to  cut  back  on  excessive  use,  and  even 
discretionary use.  Therefore, we  recommend  that  the  Town  consider  adoption of  the  inclining block 
approach to achieve conservation goals. Table 12 shows the conservation‐oriented rate structure for the 
Single‐family Residential (1 to 4 units) customer consumption charge and the uniform block rate for all 
other customers. For clarification, the FY 10/11 rates were adopted by the Town Commission in October 

ggested per the prior rate analysis. 2010 while the FY 11/12 through FY 14/15 rates are su

Table 12: Customer Consumption Charge Structure 

 

Description FY 10/11 FY 11/12 FY 12/13 FY 13/14 FY 14/15

Single-Family Residential (1-4 units)
Block 1 (0 - 6,000 gal/month) 2.97$           3.12$          3.27$           3.40$           3.54$           

Block 2 (6,001 - 12,000 gal/month) 3.56$           3.74$          3.93$           4.09$           4.25$           

Block 3 (above 12,000 gal/month) 5.94$           6.24$          6.55$           6.81$           7.08$           

All Other Customers
Uniform Rate 3.67$           3.85$          4.05$           4.21$           4.38$           

Sources: Town of Surfside; TischlerBise.

Rate per 1,000 gal

Impact of Revenue Increase 
In Fiscal Year 2010/11, the approved 18% increase in recommended revenue does not directly correlate 
to a 18% increase in all water rates. The cost of service analysis and, in Single‐family Residential’s case, 
the  restructuring  of  the  consumption  blocks  dictate  the  actual  adjustments  to  the  rates.  Figure  9 
presents  bi‐monthly water  charges  for  Single‐family  Residential  customers with  a  5/8  inch meter  at 
various  consumption  levels  utilizing  the  adopted  FY  10/11  rates.  Because  of  the  inclining  block  rate 
structure, customers with low water use will see a decrease in their water bills while high use customers 
ill experience greater monthly water bills. w

 

Page 188



Figure 9: Customer Billing Analysis: Adopted FY 10/11 Rates 

$‐

$20.00 

$40.00 

$60.00 

$80.00 

$100.00 

$120.00 

$140.00 

$160.00 

‐ 2,000  4,000  6,000  8,000  10,000  12,000  16,000  20,000  24,000  30,000 

B
i‐m

on
th
ly
 B
ill

Bi‐Monthly Water Use

FY 09/10 Rate

Adopted FY 10/11 Rate

 

Figure 10 shows a use analysis of Single‐family Residential custo

Figure 10: Customer Monthly Consumption Charge Analysis 

mers at various water use levels. 

0.0%

5.0%

10.0%

15.0%

20.0%

25.0%

30.0%

35.0%

0 ‐ 3,000 gallons 3,001 ‐ 6,000 gallons 6,001 ‐ 9,000 gallons 9,001 + gallons

%
 o
f C

us
to
m
er
s

Monthly Water Use
 

Page 189



 

Town of Surfside, Florida    25 

Rate Comparison 
While the cost structure and facilities vary greatly between water utilities, rate comparisons provide the 
Town a barometer of its rates in relation to surrounding communities. The figure (Figure 11) compares 
the estimated bi‐monthly bill for 12,000 gallons of consumption utilizing FY 10/11 Surfside adopted rates 

he graph. and published rates from each jurisdiction listed in t

Figure 11: SFR Rate Comparison –12,000 gallons 

 

$26.05 

$36.05  $36.05  $38.20 
$42.48 

$51.17  $51.82 
$57.71  $59.95 

$63.44 
$66.08 

$79.27 

 

Page 190



 

Sewer Rate Analysis 
The Town’s sewer utility system is in a similar position when compared to the Town’s water utility. The 
sewer utility is facing increased costs related to operations and an increasing need to repair and replace 
existing infrastructure.  

Revenue Requirements Analysis 
The utility capital  improvements project  (CIP) needs  for  the sewer utility are summarized  in Table 13. 
This  table  presents  the  sewer‐related  5‐year  capital  improvement  plan  as  prepared  by  the  Town’s 
engineering consultant. The table lists the outside funding sources to be utilized for the capital projects 
including accumulated  restricted and unrestricted net asset  reserves, nominal water  impact  fees, and 
bond  proceeds  from  a  proposed  revenue  bonds  issue  for  both  water  and  sewer  related  capital 
construction projects. The combined effect of these outside funding sources is to eliminate the need for 
future rate revenues to directly fund these projects. However, the rates will be recommended to fund 

bonds. the debt service obligations on the revenue 

Table 13: Sewer CIP and Funding Sources 

 

Project
Approved FY 

10/11
Forecast FY 

11/12
Forecast FY 

12/13
Forecast FY 

13/14
Forecast FY 

14/15 Total

Engineering/Architecture 78,200$        26,000$        -$                 -$                 -$                 104,200$      
Construction 3,908,900     1,023,123     -                   -                   -                   4,932,023     
Prior CIP Appropriations 621,988        -                   -                   -                   -                   621,988        

Total Sewer Capital Projects 4,609,088$   1,049,123$   -$                 -$                 -$                 5,658,211$   

Less: Outside Funding Sources
Sewer Impact Fees 500$             500$             500$             500$             500$             
Restricted Net Assets - Repair & Replacement 751,014        -                   -                   -                   -                   
Unrestricted Assets 118,000        
Revenue Bonds Proceeds 5,000,000     -                   -                   -                   -                   
Carry-over from Prior FY -                   1,260,426     211,803        212,303        212,803        

Total Outside Funding 5,869,514$   1,260,926$   212,303$      212,803$      213,303$      

Balance to Carry Over to Next FY 1,260,426$   211,803$      212,303$      212,803$      213,303$      

Net CIP Projects Funded from Rates -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 

Source: Town of Surfside; TischlerBise.

Summary of Revenue Requirements Analysis 
These  components  comprise  the  foundation  of  the  revenue  requirement  analysis. Given  the  current 
economic  climate,  the  consulting  team  facilitated  several meetings with  Town  staff  and  committee 
members  to  assure  the  accuracy  of  financial  and  growth  variables  in  developing  the  revenue 
requirement  analysis.  Particular  emphasis  was  placed  on  attempting  to  minimize  rates,  yet  still 
encompass  adequate  funds  to  support  the  operational  activities  and  capital  projects  throughout  the 
study period. The revenue analysis figure, presented below  in Table 14, provides a basis for evaluating 

Town of Surfside, Florida    26 
Page 191



the timing and  level of sewer revenue  increases adopted by the Town for FY 10/11 and recommended 
e obligations of the system for the study period. for FY 11/12 through FY 14/15 to meet th

Table 14: Sewer Revenue Adjustments 

 

Description
Approved FY 

10/11
Forecast FY 

11/12
Forecast FY 

12/13
Forecast FY 

13/14
Forecast FY 

14/15

Operating Revenue
Sewer Service Charges (before increase) 1,407,825$      1,411,344$      1,414,873$      1,418,410$      1,421,956$      
Penalties 870                 870                 870                 870                 870                 
Total Operating Revenue 1,408,695        1,412,214        1,415,743        1,419,280        1,422,826        

Year
Revenue 
Increase

Months 
Effective

2010/11 15.00% 12 211,174           211,702           212,231           212,761           213,293           
2011/12 9.00% 12 -                      146,074           146,439           146,805           147,172           
2012/13 7.00% 12 -                      -                     124,148           124,458           124,770           
2013/14 5.00% 12 -                      -                     -                      95,122             95,360             
2014/15 5.00% 12 -                      -                     -                      -                     100,128           

Total Additional Sewer Charge Revenue 211,174           357,776           482,818           579,147           680,722           

Total Required Revenue 1,619,869        1,769,990        1,898,561        1,998,427        2,103,548        

O&M Expenses
Personnel 152,688           155,742           158,857           162,034           165,274           
Operations 129,859           132,456           135,105           137,807           140,564           
Sewage Disposal (City of Miami Beach) 816,000           873,120           829,464           854,348           879,978           
Total O&M Expenses 1,098,547        1,161,318        1,123,426        1,154,189        1,185,816        

Net Operating Income 521,322           608,672           775,135           844,238           917,732           

Debt Service
Annual Debt Service (Estimated) 443,325           443,584           443,411           442,808           443,498           
Total Debt Service 443,325           443,584           443,411           442,808           443,498           

Calculated Debt Coverage Ratio 118% 137% 175% 191% 207%
Targeted Debt Coverage Ratio 110% 110% 110% 110% 110%

Non-Operating Revenue   
Interest Income 1,064               1,064              1,064               1,064              1,064              
Total Non-Operating Revenue 1,064               1,064              1,064               1,064              1,064              

Non-Operating Expenses
Capital Outlay (excl Improvements) 5,980               6,279              6,593               6,923              7,269              
Rate Funded Capital Projects -                      -                     -                      -                     -                     
Total Non-Operating Expenses 5,980               6,279              6,593               6,923              7,269              

Net Income (Loss) 1 73,080$           159,873$         326,195$         395,571$         468,029$         

1. Positive net income to be applied to fund balances.

Source: Town of Surfside; TischlerBise.

Additional Rate Revenue Required

Figure 12  illustrates the breakdown of the major budget components of the sewer utility. As the chart 
demonstrates,  the primary cost of operating  the utility  is  the costs of  sewage disposal via  the City of 
Miami Beach. 

Page 192



Figure 12: Major Budget Components of Sewer System 

 

Personnel
10%

Operations
8%

Sewage Disposal 
(City of Miami 

Beach)
53%

Annual Debt 
Service 

(Estimated)
29%

Capital Outlay 
(excl 

Improvements)
0%

Table  15  on  the  next  page  presents  the  fund  balance  information  utilizing  the  target  fund  balance 
figures for operating, capital and rate stabilization reserves. 

Cost of Service Analysis 
The cost of service analysis is a systematic process by which revenue requirements are used to generate 
a classification of fair and equitable costs  in proportion to the service received for each user class. The 
cost of service allocation conducted  in  this study  is established on a basic  flow and customer account 
basis.  This  simplified  method  is  used  because  the  Town  is  only  responsible  for  effluent  flow,  not 
treatment.  This method  is  one  endorsed  by  the Water  Environment  Federation  (WEF),  the  nation’s 
leading organization for the wastewater  industry. Revenue requirements are allocated to the different 
user classes proportionate to their flow demands and number of customer accounts or dwelling units. 
Use of this methodology results in an acceptable cost distribution among customer classes and a means 
of calculating and designing rates to proportionately recover those costs.  

 

Page 193



Table 15: Sewer Fund Balance Information 

 

Description
Approved FY 

10/11
Forecast FY 

11/12
Forecast FY 

12/13
Forecast FY 

13/14
Forecast FY 

14/15

Total Fund Equity - Sewer Only
Beginning FY 10/11 Balance 1

971,014$         

Restricted Net Assets - Renewal & Replacement Reserves
Beginning Balance 751,014$         73,080$           444,756$         657,059$         657,059$         
Restricted Net Assets to Fund Sewer CIP Projects (751,014)          -                     -                      -                     -                     
Surplus from CIP Program (after bond issue) -                      211,803           212,303           -                     -                     
Deposit from Positive Net Income 73,080             159,873           -                      -                     -                     
Ending Balance 73,080$           444,756$         657,059$         657,059$         657,059$         

Target Balance: Up to 2x Annualized R&R 521,202           521,202           521,202           521,202           521,202           
Target Met? NO NO YES YES YES
% of Target 14% 85% 126% 126% 126%

Net Income Remaining -                      -                     326,195           395,571           468,029           

Restricted Net Assets - Rate Stabilization Reserves
Beginning Balance -$                    -$                    -$                    189,769$         199,756$         
Deposit from Positive Net Income -                      -                     189,769           9,987              10,512             
Ending Balance -$                    -$                    189,769$         199,756$         210,268$         

Target Balance: Up to 10% of Rate Revenues 161,900           176,912           189,769           199,756           210,268           

Target Met? NO NO YES YES YES
% of Target 0% 0% 100% 100% 100%

Net Income Remaining -                      -                     136,426           385,585           457,517           

Unrestricted Net Assets - Operating Reserves
Beginning Balance 220,000$         102,000$         102,000$         238,426$         624,010$         
Unrestricted Net Assets to Fund Sewer CIP Projects (118,000)          -                     -                      -                     -                     
Deposit from Positive Net Income -                      -                     136,426           385,585           457,517           
Ending Balance 102,000$         102,000$         238,426$         624,010$         1,081,527$      

Target Balance: Up to 25% of Current Year O&M 274,637           290,329           280,856           288,547           296,454           

Target Met? NO NO NO YES YES

% of Target 37% 35% 85% 216% 365%

1. Sewer utility's share of total enterprise fund equity balance.

Source: Town of Surfside; TischlerBise.

See below for fund balance allocation (dependent on Town approval)

The  resulting  functionalization  factors  that  appear  at  the bottom of  Table 16  are utilized  to  allocate 
system  operating  and  capital  costs  to  each  customer  class  based  on  the  each  class’  demand  on  the 
system.  In  Table  17,  the  functionalization  percentages  are  used  to  allocate  revenue  requirements 
between variable  costs of  the water  system  (flow demands) and  fixed  costs of  the  system  (customer 
accounts or dwelling units). The  final  totals are  then used  to design  the  fixed base  charges based on 
account or dwelling unit and the variable rates per 1,000 gallons of sewage flow. 

 

 

 

Page 194



Table 16: Classification of Water Expenses by Function  

Description
Total Sewer 

Expenses Flow
Customer 
Accounts

Basis of 
Classification

Collection and Transmission
Sewage Disposal 725,389$           725,389$            -$                        100% Flow
Electricity 21,463              21,463                -                         100% Flow
Maintenance 55,754              55,754                -                         100% Flow
Total Collection and Transmission Expense 802,606             802,606              -                         

General & Administrative
Personnel 157,051             78,526                78,526                 50% Flow  50% CA
Indirect Cost Allocation 32,261              16,131                16,131                 50% Flow  50% CA
Miscellaneous G&A 24,092             

 

 

 12,046                12,046                 50% Flow  50% CA
Total G&A Expense 213,404             106,702              106,702               

Capital Requirements
Capital Outlay (excl Improvements) 5,980                5,382                 598                     90% Flow  10% CA
Debt Service 377,151             339,436              37,715                 90% Flow  10% CA
Total Capital Requirements Expense 383,131             344,818              38,313                 

TOTAL FUNCTIONALIZED COSTS 1,399,141$        1,254,126$         145,015$             

FUNCTIONALIZATION FACTOR 100.0% 89.6% 10.4%

Sources: Town of Surfside; TischlerBise.

 

Table 17: Allocation of Revenue Requirements by Functional Percentages  

 

Description
 Functionalization 

Factor FY 10/11 FY 11/12 FY 12/13 FY 13/14 FY 14/15

Sewer Flow 89.6% 1,451,196$ 1,585,758$ 1,701,003$ 1,790,518$   1,884,744$   
Customer Accounts 10.4% 167,803      183,362      196,688      207,039        217,934        

Rate Revenue Required 100.0% 1,618,999$ 1,769,120$ 1,897,691$ 1,997,557$   2,102,678$   

Sources: Town of Surfside; TischlerBise.

Rate Design Analysis 
The final step of the rate study  is the design of the sewer rates to collect the desired  level of revenue 
determined in the revenue requirement analysis. During this analysis, consideration is given to both the 
level of rates and the structure of the rates. This section reviews the sewer rate design for the Town. 

Page 195



Criteria and Considerations 
In determining the appropriate rate level and structure, the consulting team, in conjunction with Town 
staff, analyzed various financial scenarios concerning the adjustments and the implications attributed to 
those decisions. 

Below, we present a simplified list of some of the design considerations that were reviewed during this 
analysis: 

 Consideration of the customer’s ability to pay 

 Clear and understandable rates 

 Easily administered 

 Revenue stability (month to month and year to year) 

 Implementation of Capital Improvements (rate of improving the existing system) 

 Fair and equitable (cost‐based) rates 

Every  consideration  has  merit  and  plays  an  important  role  in  a  comprehensive  rate  study.  When 
developing  the  Town’s  rates  all  of  the  aforementioned  criteria  were  taken  into  consideration. 
Determining  the  appropriate  balance  is  crucial,  as  some  of  the  criteria  sometime  conflict with  one 
another,  i.e.  the  customers  ability  to  pay  and  cost‐based.  In  designing  rates,  there  will  always  be 
concessions between the various objectives; however, we attempt to ensure the rates meet all of the 
leading objectives of the Town.    

Overview of Former Rate Structure 
Prior to the 2010 rate analysis, the Town had one sewer rate structure for all customers based on the 
customers  meter  size.  Similar  to  the  prior  water  rate  structure,  the  bi‐monthly  charge  included 
minimum  sewer  flow  amounts  depending  on meter  size.  If  there were  sewer  flow  in  excess  of  this 
minimum  allotment,  the  customer would be  charged  $4.69 per  1,000  gallons of  sewer  flow  for  that 
billing period. For the prior analysis, we recommended that the Town eliminate the minimum allotment 
approach and adopt a cost‐based approach  including a fixed base charge per customer account or per 
dwelling unit  (in  the  case of  single‐family  residential accounts, apartments and  condominiums) and a 
variable rate for sewer flow on a 1,000 gallon basis. The Town adopted our recommended approach We 
had two reasons for this modification: 

 Customer Equity.   We believed the prior rate system was  inequitable to a group of customers 
who  have  sewer  flows  less  than  the  allotted  amounts.  The  prior  rate  structure  penalized 
efficient customers and customers  that have  less sewer  flow due  to being a smaller customer 
(by way of small family size, small business, etc.).  

 Revenue Stability and Cost‐of Service‐Based.  Every utility has certain costs that must be funded 
regardless  of  sewer  flow  amounts.  These  costs  are  fixed  and  typically  do  not  fluctuate.  If  a 
customer does not use any water during a billing period, there are still costs associated for past 
use  and  future  service  availability.  These  items  include  but  are  not  limited  to  capital 
replacement for past use, maintenance of assets to provide sewer collection operations  in the 

Page 196



future, debt service, and customer service. A fixed charge system without minimum allotments 
ensures the utility’s fixed costs will still be met while creating a more equitable billing system. 

Table 18 below presents  the FY 10/11 adopted  fixed base charges  in a monthly  format as well as  the 
adopted sewer flow rate per 1,000 gallons. The fixed charges are calculated using number of customer 
accounts  and  dwelling  units.  The  FY  11/12  through  FY  14/15  rates  are  suggested  per  the  prior  rate 
analysis. 

Table 18: Fixed Monthly Base Charges by Account or Dwelling Unit and Sewer Flow Rate 

Description FY 10/11 FY 11/12 FY 12/13 FY 13/14 FY 14/15

Uniform Variable Rate 5.41$         5.89$         6.31$         6.62$         6.95$         

Monthly Fixed Charge 3.43$         3.74$         4.01$         4.21$         4.42$         

Sources: Town of Surfside; TischlerBise.

Rate per 1,000 gal

Per Account/Dwelling Unit

 

Impact of Revenue Increase 
In Fiscal Year 2010/11, the approved 15%  increase  in recommended revenue did not directly correlate 
to a 15%  increase  in all sewer bills. The cost of service analysis dictates the actual adjustments to the 
bills.  Figure  13  presents  bi‐monthly  sewer  charges  for  Single‐family Residential  customers  at  various 
sewer flow  levels at the adopted FY 10/11 rates. Under this structure, customers with  low sewer flow 
levels will see a decrease in their bills while high flow customers will experience greater monthly bills. 

Rate Comparison 
While the cost structure and facilities vary greatly between sewer utilities, rate comparisons provide the 
Town a barometer of its rates in relation to surrounding communities. The figure (Figure 14) compares 
the estimated bi‐monthly bill for 12,000 gallons of sewer flow at adopted FY 10/11 adopted Town rates 
and published rates from the other jurisdictions. 

 

   

Page 197



 

Town of Surfside, Florida    33 

Figure 13: Customer Billing Analysis: FY 10/11 Adopted Sewer Rates 

Figure 14: SFR Rate Comparison –12,000 gallons; Adopted FY 10/11 Rates 

$‐

$20.00 

$40.00 

$60.00 

$80.00 

$100.00 

$120.00 

$140.00 

$160.00 

$180.00 

‐ 2,000  4,000  6,000  8,000  10,000  12,000  16,000  20,000  24,000  30,000 

B
i‐m

on
th
ly
 B
ill

Bi‐Monthly Sewer Flow

FY 09/10 Rate

Adopted FY 10/11 Rate

 

$50.22  $51.17 
$56.28  $57.47 

$60.70 
$66.20  $67.04  $67.78 

$88.25 

$95.00 

$105.08 

 

Page 198



Page 199

deastman
Typewritten Text
Item 4A3



Page 200



Page 201



Page 202



Page 203



Page 204



Page 205



Page 206



Page 207



Page 208



Page 209



Page 210



Page 211



Page 212



Page 213



Page 214



Page 215



Page 216



Page 217

deastman
Typewritten Text
Item 4B1



Page 218



Page 219



Page 220



Page 221



Page 222



Page 223



Page 224



Page 225



Page 226



Page 227

deastman
Typewritten Text
4B2



Page 228



Page 229



Page 230



Page 231



Page 232



Page 233



Page 234



Page 235



Page 236



Page 237



Page 238



Page 239



Page 240



Page 241



Page 242



Page 243



Page 244



Page 245



Page 246



Page 247



Page 248



Page 249



Page 250



Page 251



Page 252



Page 253



Page 254



Page 255

deastman
Typewritten Text
5A



Page 256



Page 257



Page 258



Page 259



Page 260



Page 261



Page 262



Page 263



Page 264



Page 265



Page 266



Page 267



Page 268



Page 269



Page 270



Page 271



Page 272

deastman
Typewritten Text
5B



Page 273



Page 274



Page 275



Page 276



Page 277



Page 278



Page 279



Page 280



Page 281



Page 282



Page 283



Page 284



Page 285



Page 286



Page 287



Page 288



Page 289



Page 290



Page 291



Page 292



Page 293



Page 294



Page 295



Page 296



Page 297



Page 298



Page 299



Page 300



Page 301



Page 302



Page 303



Page 304



Page 305



Page 306



Page 307



Page 308



Page 309



Page 310



Page 311



Page 312



Page 313



Page 314



Page 315



Page 316



Page 317

deastman
Typewritten Text
5C



Page 318



Page 319



Page 320



Page 321



Page 322



Page 323



Page 324



Page 325



Page 326



Page 327



Page 328



Page 329



Page 330



Page 331



Page 332



Page 333



Page 334



Page 335



Page 336



Page 337



Page 338



Page 339



Page 340



Page 341



Page 342



Page 343



Page 344



Page 345



Page 346



Page 347



Page 348



Page 349

deastman
Typewritten Text
5D



Page 350



Page 351



Page 352



Page 353



Page 354



Page 355



Page 356



Page 357



Page 358



Page 359



Page 360



Page 361



Page 362



Page 363



Page 364

deastman
Typewritten Text
8A



Page 365



Page 366



Page 367



Page 368



Page 369



Page 370



Page 371



Page 372



Page 373

deastman
Typewritten Text
9B



Page 374

deastman
Typewritten Text
9C



Page 375



Page 376



Page 377



Page 378



Page 379



Page 380



Page 381



Page 382



Page 383



Page 384



Page 385



Page 386



Page 387



Page 388



Page 389



Page 390



Page 391



Page 392



Page 393



Page 394



Page 395



Page 396



Page 397



Page 398



Page 399



Page 400



Page 401



Page 402



Page 403



Page 404



Page 405



Page 406



Page 407



Page 408



Page 409



Page 410



Page 411



Page 412



Page 413



Page 414



Page 415



Page 416



Page 417



Page 418



Page 419



Page 420



Page 421



Page 422



Page 423



Page 424



Page 425



Page 426



Page 427



Page 428



Page 429



Page 430



Page 431



Page 432



Page 433



Page 434



Page 435



Page 436



Page 437



Page 438



Page 439



Page 440



Page 441



Page 442



Page 443



Page 444



Page 445



Page 446



Page 447



Page 448



Page 449



Page 450



Page 451



Page 452



Page 453



Page 454



Page 455



Page 456



Page 457



Page 458



Page 459



Page 460



Page 461



Page 462



Page 463



Page 464



Page 465



Page 466



Page 467



Page 468



Page 469



Page 470



Page 471



Page 472



Page 473



Page 474



Page 475



Page 476



Page 477



Page 478



Page 479



Page 480



Page 481



Page 482



Page 483



Page 484



Page 485



Page 486



Page 487



Page 488



Page 489



Page 490



Page 491



Page 492



Page 493



Page 494



Page 495



Page 496



Page 497



 

Town of Surfside 
Town Commission Meeting 

April 12, 2010  
 7 p.m.  

Town Hall Commission Chambers - 9293 Harding Ave, 2nd Fl 
Surfside, FL  33154 

 

DISCUSSION ITEM MEMORANDUM 

Title: Smoking ban for outdoor dining and cafes 

Objective: To protect the majority (and children) from the minority, by 
banning smoking at outdoor cafes and/or sidewalk dining. 

Consideration: Second hand smoke is as disturbing as it is unhealthy.          

Consider the following: National Cancer Institute (NCI): 

• econdhand smoke S  (also called environmental tobacco smoke), 
involuntary smoke, and passive smoke) is the smoke given off by a 
burning tobacco product and the smoke exhaled by a smoker.  

• t least 69 chemicals in secondhand smoke are known to cause 
cancer.  
A

S
S

• econdhand smoke causes lung cancer in nonsmokers.  
• econdhand smoke has also been associated with heart disease in 

adults and sudden infant death syndrome, ear infections, and asthma 
attacks in children.  

• here is no safe level of exposure to secondhand smoke. T

For more Info visit: 
http://www.cancer.gov/cancertopics/factsheet/Tobacco/ETS 

Direction: Direct Town Attorney to craft an Ordinance banning smoking at 
outdoor dining facilities such as sidewalk cafes. 

Respectfully submitted by Joe Graubart, Vice Mayor 

Page 498

http://www.cancer.gov/Common/PopUps/popDefinition.aspx?id=CDR0000538647&version=Patient&language=English
http://www.cancer.gov/Common/PopUps/popDefinition.aspx?id=CDR0000046431&version=Patient&language=English
http://www.cancer.gov/Common/PopUps/popDefinition.aspx?id=CDR0000046431&version=Patient&language=English
http://www.cancer.gov/Common/PopUps/popDefinition.aspx?id=CDR0000046431&version=Patient&language=English
http://www.cancer.gov/Common/PopUps/popDefinition.aspx?id=CDR0000439426&version=Patient&language=English
http://www.cancer.gov/Common/PopUps/popDefinition.aspx?id=CDR0000440101&version=Patient&language=English
http://www.cancer.gov/cancertopics/factsheet/Tobacco/ETS
deastman
Typewritten Text
Item 9D



 

Town of Surfside 
Town Commission Meeting 

April 12, 2010  
 7 p.m.  

Town Hall Commission Chambers - 9293 Harding Ave, 2nd Fl 
Surfside, FL  33154 

 

 

DISCUSSION ITEM MEMORANDUM 

 

Title: September 11th Commemoration 

Objective: Ceremony and Plaque to commemorate the Ten Year Anniversary of 
the historic tragedy of September 11, 2001 – 9/11 

Consideration: To authorize Town Manager to prepare and budget for the ten 
year anniversary of 9/11/2011.  And, to report back to the Commission. 

Location: In front of Town Hall, Harding Avenue side.   

 

Note: September 11, 2011 falls on a Sunday.  

 

Respectfully submitted by Joe Graubart, Vice Mayor 

 

 

 

  

Page 499

deastman
Typewritten Text
Item 9E



 

Town of Surfside 
Town Commission Meeting 

April 12, 2010  
 7 p.m.  

Town Hall Commission Chambers - 9293 Harding Ave, 2nd Fl 
Surfside, FL  33154 

 

 

DISCUSSION ITEM MEMORANDUM 

 

Title: “Grace Period” – Parking Citations in metered parking lots 

Objective: To NOT issue overtime parking citations to patrons that have 
purchased ONE hour or more of parking by adopting a FIVE or TEN minute 
grace period.  

Consideration:  Patrons of Surfside’s downtown business district who paid for 
parking – and return to their cars to find a citation that was issued to them 
after paying for 1 – 3 hours for being several minutes late – will leave Town 
disappointed. 

 

Direct Town Manager and Police Department to adopt this policy – yes or no? 

Or: 

‘study and consider’ adopting this policy. 

And, report back to the Commission – i.e. ‘Point of Light’  

 

Respectfully submitted by Joe Graubart, Vice Mayor 

 

Page 500

deastman
Typewritten Text
Item 9F



Page 501

deastman
Typewritten Text
9G



Page 502



Page 503



Page 504



Page 505



Page 506



Page 507



Page 508



Page 509



Page 510



Page 511



Page 512



Page 513



Page 514



Page 515



Page 516



Page 517



Page 518



Page 519



Page 520



Page 521



Page 522

deastman
Typewritten Text
9H



 

Town of Surfside 
Town Commission Meeting 

April 12, 2010  
 7 p.m.  

Town Hall Commission Chambers - 9293 Harding Ave, 2nd Fl 
Surfside, FL  33154 

 

Item to be added to Points of Light/ 

DISCUSSION ITEM MEMORANDUM 

Title: “Bicycle Sharing & Rental Program” 

Miami Beach has recently established a bicycle rental program known as: 

“The Official City of Miami Beach Public Bicycle Sharing & Rental Program” 

 

Direct the Town Manager to inquire about joining the ‘network’ of bicycle rental stations by 
establishing a ‘rental station’ in the downtown business district area on Town of Surfside 
property by ‘piggy backing’ on the Miami Beach contract.   

Rent: “Visitors can rent at any station by the hour or get a daily ride pass.” OR: 

Join: “Florida residents just $15/month for unlimited-rides – BeachPass.” 

Surfside residents, their guests, and tourists can ride back and forth to neighboring 
communities and/or have the option to take the bus back (or vice versa).   

For More Info: www.decobike.com  and  http://decobike.com/map-location.php 

At this time, the furthest north for one these ‘rental stations’ is 53rd Street and Collins Avenue.   

Word of Caution: These bike rental stations do NOT offer helmets.  Therefore, some gathering 
of statistics from Miami Beach regarding ‘head injuries’ should be reviewed - perhaps by 
contacting Mt. Sinai hospital and/or Miami Beach Police Department.  

Cost: Could bring money in without any cost to Town. 

Respectfully submitted by: Joe Graubart, Vice mayor 

Page 523

http://www.decobike.com/
http://decobike.com/map-location.php
deastman
Typewritten Text
Item 9I



Page 524

deastman
Typewritten Text
Item 9J



Page 525

deastman
Typewritten Text
Item 9K



Page 526



Page 527



Page 528



Page 529



Page 530



Page 531



Page 532



Page 533



Page 534



Page 535



Page 536



Page 537



Page 538



Page 539



Page 540



Page 541



Page 542


	Agenda
	Surfside Baynanza
	Minutes 1-18-11
	Minutes 2-8-11
	Budget to Actual 1-31-11
	Town Managers POL Report
	Town Attorney's Report
	CGA Projects Progress Report
	Earth Day Resolution
	Census Data
	Code Enforcement Committee Appointment - Comm Karukin
	Professional Lobbying Services
	Parks and Rec Committee Appointment - Comm Karukin
	Joint Mtg Ord sec read
	Master Utility Bond Ord sec read
	Moratorium Ordinance sec read
	Short Term Rental Ord  first read
	Resort Tax Ord first read
	Reso Reappropriation of Resort Tax
	Reso VOIP Phone System
	Reso Munibill$
	Reso Master Utility Bond
	Ad HOc Code Enforcement Committee Report
	July 12, 2011 reschedule meeting date
	CAFR
	Smoking Ban - VM Graubart
	Sept 11, 2011 Ceremony -VM Graubart
	Parking Grace Period - VM Graubart
	FPL Undergrounding of Service Lines
	Concessionaire Services
	Bike Rental - VM Graubart
	Crime Prevention Initiatives - Mayor Dietch
	Photo/Film Update



